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A Leader in Innovation & Building Solutions

Lafarge Africa Plc is a member of the
LafargeHolcim Group — the largest
building and concrete solutions
company in the world. Itis a publicly
quoted company on the Premium
Board of the Nigerian Stock Exchange
(NSE) and serves Nigeria with a wide
range of building and construction
solutions designed to meet housing
and construction needs from small
projects like individual home buildings
to major construction and
infrastructure projects.

With plants in Ewekoro and Sagamuin
the South-west, Mfamosing in the
South-South and Ashaka in the North-
East of Nigeria, Lafarge Africa Plc
currently has an installed cement
production capacity of 10.5MTPA and
has plans for further expansion in the
near future.

Our Operations
South-West Operations

For our South-West operations, we
have two plants located in Sagamu
and Ewekoro, both in Ogun State with
a combined production capacity of
4 5MTPA. The Geocycle and Mortar
plants are also located in the South-
West.

Our product portfolio includes five
brands - Elephant Cement, a general
purpose cement - a multi-use product
suitable for majority of the
applications; Supaset, a fast-setting
and rapid strength gaining cement
specifically designed for the needs of
the block-makers; Powermax, a high
strength cement for the sophisticated
contractor segment; Etex, a high
performance cement designed to
specification for the manufacturing of
roof tiles and SRC, a sulphate resistant
cement for coastal construction.

Northern Nigeria Operations

Ashaka Cement plant in the North-
East region alsofocuses on providing
creative and qualitative solutions to
meet the needs of both small,
medium and large scale projects. In
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the last 4 decades, Ashaka Cement
plant has contributed immensely to
the economic growth and
development of North-Eastern Nigeria
andis well positioned to impact the
ecosystem of theregion.

Ashaka Cement was incorporated in
August 1974 and commenced
production in 1979 as a cement
manufacturing and marketing
company under the name AshakaCem
Plc. The company was founded by
the defunct Nigerian Industrial
Development Bank (NIDB) Limited,
the Nigerian Bank for Commerce and
Industry (NBCI), Northern Nigeria
Investment Limited (NNIL) and the
Government of the then North-Eastern
State (now Adamawa, Bauchi, Borno,
Gombe, Taraba and Yobe States).
Current annual cement production of
the plant is TMTPA with plans for
expansion.

Ashaka Cement produces the 32.5
and 42.5 types of cement which
stands out for consistent high quality.

Southern Nigeria Operations

Our Southern Nigeria operations
comprise of a cement plant in
Mfamosing, Cross River State and a
product distribution hub in Port
Harcourt, Rivers State. The
Mfamosing plant is a modern
production facility with an annual
cement production capacity of
5MTPA. It was originally established in
2002 as United Cement Company
Nigeria (UNICEM) Limited, after the
acquisition of the assets of moribund
Calabar Cement Company
(CalCemCo).

In 2012, the plant's product portfolio
was expanded to offer customers two
cement products catering for general
purpose and specialized applications.
An additional manufacturing line with
a production capacity of 2.5MTPA
was commissioned in 2016 to bring
the total production capacity of the
plantto BMTPA and is now the single

largest cement production site for
Lafarge Africa.

Ready Mix Operations

Lafarge Africa Plc through its
previously owned subsidiary Lafarge
Ready Mix Nigeria Limited (now
merged into Lafarge Africa Plc) is the
pioneer and leader in Commercial
Ready Mix Concrete Operations in
Nigeria. With current installed annual
capacity over 400,000 cubic meter,
Ready Mix operates a network of
commercial batching plants across
the main commercial hubs of Lagos,
Port Harcourt and Abuja; comprising
seven (7) Ready Mix Concrete Plants
and a Central Laboratory in Lagos.

Our Batching Plant sites are managed
by a team of experienced personnel
with broad knowledge in all aspects of
Ready Mix Concrete production,
including Health, Safety and
Environment,Quality Control,
Logistics, and Maintenance. The Site
teams are fully supported by the
Lafarge operational management
team located in Lagos and Technical
support team from Lafarge Research
Centre (LCR) in Lyon, France.

Ready Mix offers a wide range of
concrete products designed to
address both project and application
based needs (or challenges) of clients
through the provision of Standard
Concrete and pump mixes for normal
applications in strengths of 10MPa to
50MPa and aggregate sizes from Omm
to 23mm with guaranteed strength at
28 days, and Value Added Products
which offer the opportunity to work
with clients/contractors in developing
the right concrete to address
robustness, durability, aesthetics and
timing requirements at different
project stages. Lafarge offers ranges
of different concrete formulations and
innovative solutions through
customized technical solutions geared
towards reduction of construction
time and cost without compromising
quality.
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Our product offerings include Fast
Strip, Ultra Delay, Ultra Early, Low
Heat, Waterproofing, Self-
Compacting, UltraFiber, Shotcrete
and Lightweight Concretes, including
Standard Screed, Piling Concrete for
Continuous Flight Auger (cfa), Bore
Piles and Sulphate Resistant
Concrete solution for marine
environments.

We also provide Mobile Plant
Services and can set up with short
lead time to support Projects in
remote and logistically challenging
sites, anywhere in Nigeria.

In addition we ensure product
consistency through adequate
control of our input raw materials and
production environment. Our
production process and standard
concrete mixes are designed in
accordance with International
standards and conform with EN 206;
internal and external audits are also
regularly conducted on our
equipment.

Ready Mix Concrete is ideal for any
kind of project — smaller extensions or
modification projects, confined job
sites, green field infrastructure
projects and remote job sites. We
offer top quality concrete in a safe
manner and have established a
seamless ordering process with our
dedicated sales representatives.

GEOCYCLE NIGERIA- FOR A ZERO
WASTE FUTURE

Geocycle Nigeria brand, the waste
treatment and management activity
of Lafarge Africa Plc in its quest
towards engendering cleaner and
zero waste communities took steps to
consolidate on its activities in 2019.
This is a further demonstration of
Lafarge Africa Plc's commitment to
preserving our planet's future, having
launched the sustainable waste
management solution in 2018.
Through Geocycle, we source and co-
process wastes for alternative fuel
from different sectors in a sustainable
manner. Our drive with the Geocycle
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brand demonstrates our strong
support forthe environment.

In 2019, our biomass project
continued to sustain over 3000 jobs in
various local communities that
supplied about 90,000 tons of biomass
to our plants at Ewekoro, Sagamu and
Ashaka. We also consolidated on our
partnership with the Food and
Beverage Recycling Alliance (FBRA) of
Nigeria to offer eco-friendly waste
management solutions to members of
the Alliance, thereby reducing the
quantity of waste that goes to landfills.
This has had a corresponding positive
impact on our society including the
creation of over 100 direct and indirect
jobs.

Following receipt of approval from the
Department of Petroleum Resources
(DPR), Geocycle is set to offer waste
management service to the Qil & Gas
industry, for treatment and co-
processing in our cementkiln. This will
preserve the environment and have no
impact on our cement quality and
emissions.

In December 2019, we commissioned
a chemical chute for destruction of
expired Pharmaceutical products
under the Supervision of the National
Agency for Food & Drug
Administration & Control (NAFDAC).
This further demonstrates the
acceptance of Geocycle's co-
processing technique for Hazardous
and Non- Hazardous waste treatment
in the cement production process
other than previously established local
destruction solution with detrimental
environmental impact.

In 2019, at Country level, 12% of our
energy was derived from wastes and
other biomass with highest usage of
45% achieved at Ewekoro Line 1. This
was achieved from Fossil Fuel
substitution at our Ewekoro, Sagamu
and Ashaka Plants.

With the commissioning of Geocycle
Nigeria Project in Q1 2020, we
anticipate significant increase in our
Country energy level derived from

waste as we continue to positively
impact the environment and create
more job opportunities.

MORTAR

Mortar provides a new range of
products for customers of Lafarge
Africa Plc. Since 2018, Lafarge Africa
has been providing dry mortars like tile
adhesives to its customers, enabling
them to benefit from LafargeHolcim's
global expertise tailored to their local
needs.

Lafarge Supafix Tile Adhesive is a
cement-based tile adhesive made of
cement, aggregates, as well as organic
and inorganic additives. The solution is
designed specifically for interior tiling
and has proven to be efficient for floor
and wall applications.

Lafarge Supafix Tile Adhesive is an
innovative solution, delivered by our
expert teams, which helps customers to
differentiate and succeed in their
business by providing efficiency, ease
of application and high quality.

In the near future, we will offer the
Nigerian market a wide variety of dry,
pre-mixed mortar solutions for tiling
and other construction works.

)

In 2019, at Country
level, 12% of our energy

was derived from
wastes and other
biomass with highest
usage of 45% achieved
at EwekoroLine 1.
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OUR SOLUTIONS & PRODUCTS

CEMENT

The Company has a wide range of cement solutions designed to meet all building and construction needs, from
small projects like individual home buildings to major construction projects.

Our Cement Product Portfolio includes 5 brands: Elephant Cement, a multi-purpose product suitable for a variety
of building applications; Supaset, a fast setting and rapid strength gaining cement specifically designed for the
needs of block makers; Powermax, a high strength cement for the sophisticated contractor segment; Etex, a
cement product designed to specification for manufacturing roof tiles; and SRC, a sulphate resistant cement for
coastal construction.

READYMIX

Leveraging the LafargeHolcim Group's over 50 years of global experience in the ReadyMix business. Lafarge
Africa produces quality and innovative concrete and aggregates solutions for small and large construction
projects. ReadyMix operates currently in Lagos, Ogun, Abuja and Port Harcourt as a project enabler, driving
quality and innovation as well as promoting a sustainable environment for generations to come.

MORTAR

The first of its kind in the Nigerian market, Lafarge Supafix is a cementitious tile adhesive made of cement,
aggregates as well as organic and inorganic additives. The solution was designed specifically for tiling and has
proven to be particularly efficient for floor and wall applications.

GEOCYCLE

Through our Geocycle operations, we collect waste directly from municipalities and industries, pre-process it in
platforms and co-process (or reuse) it in our cement plants. Through co-processing (the complete destruction of
waste in our cement kilns) we recover energy and recycle materials from different types of waste, ranging from
household plastics to industrial chemicals.

The activities of Geocycle have strong environmental benefits for communities; they reduce the volume of
landfilled waste, save public funds, create a cleaner living environment and encourage a circular economy.
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CONTACT DETAILS

Head Office:
27B, Gerrard Road, Ikoyi,
Lagos State

Tel:+234 (1) 2713990

Abuja Liaison Office:
House AA1, No 9,
Julius Nyerere Crescent,
Asokoro, Abuja,

Tel:+234 (1) 2713990

PLANT LOCATIONS

AshakaCem:
Ashaka Works,
Gombe, Gombe State

Tel: +234(0)8022924941-2
Ewekoro Plants:

KM 64, Old Lagos-Abeokuta Road,
Ewekoro, Ogun State

Tel: +234 (1) 2713990
Mfamosing:

Mfamosing Akampka LGA,
Cross River State
Tel:+234(0)7034167567
Sagamu Plant:

KM 64, Old Lagos-lkorodu Road,
Sagamu, Ogun State

Tel: +234 (1) 2713990

Customer Value Center

193 Jide Oki Street, Off Ligali Ayorinde,
Victoria Island, Lagos

Tel: +234 (1) 271 3990

READYMIX LOCATIONS

NKB Plant, Oregun, lkeja
No 38 Kudirat-Abiola Road off Adebayo
Akande Street, Oregun, Ikeja, Lagos, Nigeria

Tel: +234(0)708 860 4708
+234(0)802 532 1761

Lekki Plant
Gracefield Island,
Lagoon Shoreline
Chevron Drive,
Lagos.

Tel: +234(0)906 268 2778
+234(0)802 532 1761

Ewekoro Plant:
Km 64, Lagos/Abeokuta Expressway,
Ewekoro, Ogun Ewekoro — Ogun

Tel: +234(0)708 860 4698
+234(0)802 5632 1761

Onne Plant:
Port Harcourt, Rivers State, Nigeria

Tel: +234(0)708 860 4699
+234(0)808 663 3083

Trans Amadi Plant:

17/19 Danjuma Drive, Trans-Amadi Industrial Layout,

Port Harcourt, Rivers State Trans Amadi — Rivers

Tel: +234(0)708 860 4699
+234(0)808 663 3083

Abuja Plant (Idu)
763, Cadastral Zone C16,0pposite Salini
Quarters, Idu Industrial Estate, Abuja FCT Abuja

Tel: +234(0)708 860 4723
+234(0)708 860 4707
+234(0)808 663 3083
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CUSTOMERS

Our focus is to build and
deliver solutions that meet
customers’ expectations.
We encourage diverse
thinking to promote and
nurture innovation. We
collaborate with our
customers to achieve
shared objectives.

SUSTAINABILITY

We demonstrate leadership
in environmental stewardship
while role-modelling
responsibility to future
generations.

We look towards the broadest
possible views of any issue

or challenge.
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RESULTS

Through business insights
and the quality of our decision
making, we introduce new
ways of looking at challenges
in order to achieve excellent
results while ensuring
accountability.

PEOPLE OPENNESS
AND INCLUSION

We truly care for and respect
every individual.

We place a high priority on
developing our people and
building effective teams.

INTEGRITY

We operate a compliance
focused organization and
act with a clear sense of
ownership.

HEALTH AND
SAFETY

Health and Safety
is an overarching

value embedded in
everything we do

TOGETHER WE DELIVER,
WE Win!



*Supa Strong +« Supa Smooth »Supa Quality
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Financial Highlights

Profit after Tax (N'000)

25000000

Revenue (N'000)

20000000

212,999,066

% 2019
2018

217,813,136

10000000

5000000

Number of

Employees Retained Earnings (N'000)

1,485

@ 2019
2018 .
1 7 7 9 5 150000000

145000000

140000000

135000000

130000000
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Chairman, Board
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Fellow shareholders, | am delighted to
welcome you all to the 61st Annual
General Meeting ("AGM"”) of our
Company, Lafarge Africa Plc and to lay
before you the Annual Report and
Accounts of the Company for the financial
year ended 31st December, 2019.

| feel somewhat like the words to describe our current
collective situation have been somewhat used up during
the last couple of weeks, and so | will simply start with the
sincere wish that this finds you, as well as possible and that
you are staying safe and keeping well. As | prepared this
year's Chairman's letter to our shareholders, the world is
confronting the greatest health pandemic in a generation,
one that affects the global and Nigerian economy and all
people. While numbers remain relatively low in Nigeria,
our thoughts remain with those, including healthcare
workers, most deeply affected by the COVID-19 crisis. In
the midst of the uncertainty that pervades the world at this
time and not knowing when we will emerge from this
crisis,  am humbled by how we have all come together, as
one, in our humanity.

We were connected with the Nigeria’s index case of the
coronavirus, through an ltalian citizen, an engineer with a
German manufacturer of cement packing machine, who
was on a mission for his company to carry out annual
maintenance work at our Ewekoro Plant. He arrived in
Nigeria and subsequently at the plant towards the end of
February, 2020. Our medical team acted quickly, when he
presented symptoms of the virus infection and responded
to isolate him and alert the NCDC and government
authorities. Our medical team together with management
at the plant, acted timely, in collaboration with the Ogun
and Lagos State Governments to isolate this individual and
to identify quickly everyone who had been in contact with
him since his arrival in Nigeria, to ensure a containment of
the spread of the virus. | wish to commend Dr.
Amarachukwu Karen Allison, our Health Consultant for her
rapid response and leadership at the plant. | also want to
place on record, our appreciation to Prince Dapo Abiodun,
Governor of Ogun State and Mr. Babajide Sanwo-Olu,
Governor of Lagos State and their staff, especially
Professor Akin Abayomi, Lagos State Commissioner for
Health for the key role they played and the support
provided to ensure that this matter was dealt with rapidly. |
also wish to thank the Governor of Cross River State,
Professor Ben Ayade, the Governor of Gombe State,
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Muhammad Inuwa Yahaya and the Governor of Ebonyi
State, Mr. David Nweze Umahi for their collaborative
working relationship we have enjoyed during the pandemic.

When the time is right and the future is clearer, we will
provide a complete and current view on how this crisis
might change our strategies around how we run the
company. However, right now, as we deal with the spiraling
effects of this pandemic, we want to focus on what we can
do to remain strong, resilient and well-positioned to support
our colleagues, clients, customers and communities across
Nigeria.

RETIREMENT

As already announced, | have notified the Board, of my
intention to retire as Chairman and step down as a member
of the Board of Directors after this AGM. In all, | have been
privileged to serve on the Board of the Company for over
fifteen (15) years, having joined the Board in March 2005. |
served for the first ten (10) years as a Non-Executive Director
and was at various times a member of the Statutory Audit
Committee, member of the Risk Committee and member
and Chair of the Finance & Strategy Committee. Since May
2015 | have been privileged to serve as your Chairman.
Having overseen the progress in our transformation plan,
the clean-up of our balance sheet and deleveraging of our
Company, its return to robust profitability, streamlining of
our operations, the renewal of our Board and the smooth
CEO and CFO succession plan, it is with a deep sense of
gratitude to God, that | feel fulfilled, in retiring as Chairman,
knowing that the Board and our Company is in very good
shape. To God be the Glory, for the Grace | have enjoyed in
steering the Company through some of the most
challenging times since the foundation of the Company.

In the over fifteen years that | served on the Board, | have
been privileged to work alongside many colleagues whose
contributions to the Board, helped shape the direction of the
Company, creating growth and value for our shareholders. It
is therefore fitting that | pay tribute to these men and
women. | wish to acknowledge my immediate predecessor,
Chief Olusegun Osunkeye, CON, OFR. Chief Osunkeye is a
Nigerian patriot and an excellent corporate statesman. He
served the Board for over 14 years, retiring as Chairman in
May 2015. His considerable experience and commitment to
good governance guided Lafarge Africa's transformation
from a small regional cement manufacturer into a diversified
building materials company with wider geographical
footprint. I am grateful for his mentorship and wise counsel
over the years. | appreciate Mr. Guillaume Roux, our CEO
until July 2015, who led the transaction for the acquisition of

Business
Review

" Statement
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Ashaka Cement, the merger of Atlas Cement and Unicem
into Lafarge Wapco, to create Lafarge Africa. Guillaume's
willingness to try, guided Lafarge Africa through the
process and delivered a wider domestic footprint, than any
of our competitors.

| wish to place on record my gratitude to the following
Nigerian Directors with whom | served on the Board,
namely late High Chief (Dr) 'Bayo Akinnola, MFR, Chief
(Dr) Joseph Sanusi, CON, Dr. Adebayo Jimoh, late Chief
Ademola Awosanya, late Asiwaju Akintunde Asalu, Mr.
Joe Makoju, Professor Oyelowo Oyewo, Mrs Oludewa
Edodo-Thorpe, Dr. Shamsudeen Usman, CON, OFR and
Alhaji Umaru Kwairanga, Sarkin Fulani Gombe. | worked
with several exceptional members of Senior Management,
notably George Lourandos, Ranti Sokunbi, Samy
Abdelkader, Jean-Christophe Barbant, Joe Hudson, Peju
Adebajo, Wole Adeleke, Anders Kristiansson, Fred Amobi,
Albert Sigei and Bruno Bayet. | also recall our Company
Secretaries, Sally Uwechue Mbanefo, Viola Graham-
Douglas, Edith Onwuchekwa and Uzoma Uja. | appreciate
their support to me as a Board Member and their
contributions to the success of the Board. The Company
has benefitted from the experience of several individuals
who represented LafargeHolcim, on the Board of
Directors, over the years. | remember notably, Tony
Hadley, Jean-Carlos Angulo, Sylvie Rochier, Thierry Metro,
Christof Hassig and Jean-Philippe Bernard. They all
brought their understanding of the global cement industry
to the benefit of the Company.

LAFARGE SOUTH AFRICA OPERATIONS (“LSAH")
Following the resolution passed by shareholders at the last
AGM, the divestment of the Company's 100% equity
ownership of Lafarge South Africa Holdings Pty was
successfully completed in July 2019. The Company's
ownership of LSAH represented an indirect holding of
72.40% in the underlying principal operating companies in
South Africa, including Lafarge Industries South Africa,
Lafarge Mining South Africa and Ash Resources. In
hindsight, the Board acted in a timely manner on the
divestment as the economy in South Africa has so far not
shown any sign of recovery in the near-term. The
divestment has been well received by our investors given
the significant deleveraging it has brought to the balance
sheet of our Company, reducing our cost of debt financing
and repaying all our foreign currency debt.

| thank LafargeHolcim for its timely response to the need
to resolve the issue with LSAH and | wish to record in
particular, my appreciation to Geraldine Picaud,
LafargeHolcim Group CFO who led the LafargeHolcim
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side at the negotiations, for her leadership and key role,
along with Miljan Gutovic, LafargeHolcim, Head of Middle
East & Africa, to ensure that we were able to conclude the
divestment within our planned timelines.

NIGERIA OPERATIONS

In March 2005, the Company launched its first Rights Issue
to reduce a large net debt on the balance sheet which
resulted from the cost of the construction of Ewekoro line1,
a 2.0mtpa cement production line. Since then, the Company
had embarked on and delivered successfully several
corporate actions that have grown the cement production
capacity between 2005 and 2019, from 2.0mtpa to
10.5mtpa. This 8.5bmtpa coming largely from the acquisition
of Ashaka (1.0mtpa) and the acquisition and subsequent
merger of Unicem which brought 5.0mtpa. During the
period the Ewekoro 2 line was commissioned and added
2.5mtpa. While these corporate actions transformed the
Company from a regional cement company into one with
operations across Nigeria and able to compete favourably,
the acquisitions brought c¢.N343.1billion of debt on the
balance sheet. This has now been resolved with the support
of shareholders through two Rights Issues (N131.6 billion in
2018 and N89.2 billion in 2019) and the proceeds from the
divestment of LSAH.

Atthe end of 2019 financial year the balance sheet had been
significantly deleveraged with closing net debt at N37.1
billion, a major portion of this being a N33.8 billion b-year
corporate bond which matures and will be redeemed in
June 2021, creating room for the consideration of additional
cement production capacity. This result has been
recognized by the stock market and a re-rating in the share
price of the Company is due.

RESULTS FORTHE YEAR

Domestic demand for cement in 2019 was estimated at
21.2m metric tons, an increase of 3.3% compared with
2018. On the back of this positive level of demand, cement
despatches closed the year at 4.9 million metric tons, an
increase of 1.6% compared with 2018. However, as a result
of pricing pressure from competition sales revenue on a like-
for-like basis decreased marginally by 2.2% from N217.8
billion to N212.9 billion (excluding LSAH). As a result of the
several corporate actions to deleverage the balance sheet
including the divestment of LSAH, debt financing cost was
reduced substantially to N20.2 billion from N41.6 billion in
2018 (excluding LSAH). Profit after tax for the year was
N15.5 billion compared with profit after tax of N8.1 billion
recorded for 2018. Given this substantially improved
performance, earnings per share was positive at N7.15 per
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share compared with a negative of N1.05 per share for
2018, further demonstrating the accretion to shareholder
value.

PROPOSED DIVIDEND

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to
appreciate our shareholders for their support for the Board
of Directors when it was not possible to propose a dividend
payment. Thankfully, we have now put behind us those
moments and Lafarge Africa has once again begun to
deliver value for shareholders. On this basis, the Board of
Directors is now able to propose for shareholders approval
at today's meeting a gross dividend pay-out of 100 Kobo
per share. The proposed dividend if approved by
shareholders, is payable on 3rd June, 2020 out of the
pioneer reserve.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Our Corporate Responsibility report detailing key activities
during the year under review is set out on pages 33 to 38 of
the Annual Report and Accounts. Sustainability has
become integral to our operations with a focus on a 2030
Plan which aligns with the United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals (United Nations SDGs). The 2030 Plan
helps us to run our operations with focus on positive
contributions to the four key pillars of Climate, Circular
Economy, Water and Nature, as well as People and
Communities. Our sustainable development initiatives
therefore cut across, reduction of CO2 emissions,
improved provision of quality building solutions, focus on
Health and Safety, corporate governance, alternative fuels,
gender diversity, affordable housing, development of in-
house talent and contribution to long-term social and
economic development of Nigeria.

As part of our social investments, | wish to highlight
Lafarge Africa's National Literacy Competition. We were
delighted at this annual event to host as guest of honour,
His Royal Highness, the former Emir of Kano,
Mohammadu Sanusi Il. Mohammadu Sanusi Il's passion
for the education of our children in a globalized world is
well known and we are grateful for his support to our
contribution. Since inception in 2014, this national CSR
initiative continues to make concrete impact with over
700,000 beneficiaries so far. The education of our children
must be a major priority for us all and Lafarge Africa
continues to play a leadership role in this area. This
initiative now covers all regions of the country, and it is
encouraging to see the enthusiasm and development
which this competition brings to our children.
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As a responsible corporate citizen, we continue to be
mindful of the importance of partnership with our host
communities where our production facilities are situated.
The majority of our corporate investments were committed
to community development projects on Education, Youth
and Economic Empowerment, Health and Safety, as well as
infrastructure development to ensure an ecosystem that
permits a thriving community life.

BOARD CHANGES

Since the last AGM, Michel Puchercos resigned his
appointment as Managing Director to pursue a career
elsewhere and was replaced by Khaled El Dokani, whose
last role before joining the Board was as CEO of
LafargeHolcim Irag. Mr. El Dokani brings to his new role a
rich experience in cement operation and finance. Mr. El
Dokani's appointment to the Board will be confirmed by
shareholders at this meeting. A summary profile of Mr. El
Dokaniis on page 20 of this Annual Report.

Also since the last AGM, Jean-Philippe Bernard, Christof
Hassig and Rossen Papazov resigned from the Board of
Directors. On behalf of our shareholders and the Board, |
thank them for their service to the Company through their
invaluable contributions to the Board of Directors and wish
them well in their future endeavors. The Lafarge Africa
Board has appointed Gbenga Oyebode MFR, as
Independent Non-Executive Director, Olivier Guitton, as
Non-Executive Director and Lolu Alade-Akinyemi as
Executive Director. These appointments are on the agenda
at this AGM for confirmation by shareholders and their
summary profile are on pages 20 and 22 of the Annual
Report. On behalf of shareholders | am pleased to welcome
most warmly, our new directors.

| am pleased to announce that following the appropriate
process and to ensure continuity in leadership of the Board,
Prince Adebode Adefioye who joined the Board in 2012,
currently a Non-Executive Director and Chairman of the
Finance and Strategy Committee of the Board, has been
appointed by the Board of Directors to succeed me as
Chairman after this Annual General Meeting. Prince
Adefioye has been an active member of the Board and
brought added skills to the Board in an energetic and
pragmatic manner. He understands the heritage and fits
within the culture of Lafarge Africa at Board, operational
and within the global business and he also acknowledges
the absolute need for continuity being an essential aspect
of him taking on the role of Chairman at this pivotal time. |
am delighted that the Board was able to appoint him into
this role and Prince Adefioye will now lead the Company

Corporate Profile

Statement
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into its next phase and | pray for a successful tenure for
him. | ask all of our shareholders and stakeholders to give
him all the needed support including keeping him in
prayers.

In accordance with our Articles of Association, the
Directors to retire by rotation at the Annual General
Meeting and who being eligible, now offer themselves for
re-election are Karine Uzan Mercie and Grant Earnshaw.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The balance sheet of the Company is now substantially
deleveraged paving way for the consideration of major
investments for the expansion of production capacities in
cement and readymix. The earnings per share has
recovered from negative territory and barring any
unforeseen circumstances should maintain an upward
trajectory which will allow for more regular dividend
payment to shareholders and improved valuation by
investors of the Company's share.

Given that Nigeria's housing stock and number of paved
roads significantly lag benchmark, it is expected that as
the Nigerian macro-economic indices improves the rate of
growth in domestic demand for cement will return to pre-
recession of 2016. As part of the response to combat the
spread of Covid-19 and to flatten the curve of incidence of
this pandemic, the Federal Government, issued an order
fora lockdown of Lagos State, Ogun State and the Federal
Capital Territory, Abuja with all movement and travel
restricted except for persons on essential services. Other
States with large populated cities also issued similar
orders. While this has impact on production and sales
volumes, our management has designed a strategy that
will help minimize the impact on financial results for the
year.

CONCLUSION

It has been an honour to serve as a Director and Chairman
and | wish to appreciate our stakeholders, especially our
management and staff who were fundamental to the
delivery of the transformation plan and the improved
results, before shareholders today. | thank all our people,
across all locations for your commitment in a challenging
environment. Our key partners namely our distributors,
customers, transporters, suppliers, bondholders, bankers
and other service providers, deserve our appreciation for
their continued support.

| thank my fellow shareholders for your support and
collaboration as we worked to build a stronger company.
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Our largest shareholder, LafargeHolcim continued to invest
and provide substantial commercial and technical support
to our operations, for which we remain grateful. | also
acknowledge the support we received from our founding
shareholder, O'dua Investments, who remain supportive of
the Company's objectives.

| thank my colleagues on the Board and our Company
Secretary for their selfless service and it has been a
pleasure leading and working with such a high
performance and effective Board. Your insights have
guided the Company through a critical period. We now
have a business that is better prepared for a challenging
economic environment and we see many opportunities to
grow furtherand accelerate on our objectives.

If | concluded and failed to remember my family and
colleagues at Chapel Hill Denham, for their love and
support, | would be remiss. To God be the Glory, for the
privilege to lead the Board, over the last b years.

Distinguished shareholders, my colleagues on the Board,
ladies and gentlemen, | wish the Company, great success
as it navigates the future and once again, welcome to the
61st AGM of our Company and | invite you to participate
actively, in the agenda of the meeting.

Thank you and God bless.

el

Mobolaji Balogun
Chairman
Lafarge Africa Plc

)J

Having overseen the progress in our
transformation plan, the clean-up of
our balance sheet and deleveraging of
our Company, its return to robust
profitability, streamlining of our

operations, the renewal of our Board
and the smooth CEO and CFO
succession plan, it is with a deep sense
of gratitude to God, that | feel fulfilled,
in retiring as Chairman, knowing that the
Board and our Company is in very good
shape.
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MR. MOBOLAJI
OLUDAMILOLA
BALOGUN

Chairman

Mr. Mobolaji Balogun joined the
Board of the Company on the 1st
of March 2005 and was appointed
as the Chairman of Lafarge Africa
on the 22nd of May 2015. He is
the Chief Executive Officer of
Chapel Hill Denham, one of
Nigeria's leading investment firms
and Chief Investment Officer of the
Nigeria Infrastructure Debt Fund.
He has over thirty years of
experience in investment banking
and mobile telecommunications.

He spent eleven years within
FCMB Group, in investment
banking and securities trading,
leaving the business in January
2001. From April 1993 to January
2001, he was Executive Director
and Chief Operating Officer at CSL
Stockbrokers (part of FCMB
Group). Bolaji was also Executive
Director at FCMB Capital Markets
from January 1996, where he led
advisory teams in major corporate
and commercial transactions.

He left FCMB Capital Markets in
January 2001, to become a co-
founder and Director of Econet
Wireless Nigeria, now Airtel
Nigeria. He led the capital raising
and license bid auction process for
Econet Wireless Nigeria's USD285
million GSM license. He was
pioneer Chief Business
Development and Strategy Officer
and in October 2001, was
appointed Chief Marketing Officer.
The US$1.67 billion sale of Econet
Wireless to Celtel in 2005 remains
Nigeria's single largest
successfully exited private
investment. Bolaji left mobile
telecommunications and returned
to investment banking, when he
founded Chapel Hill in 2005.

He is Vice Chairman of Endeavor
Nigeria and a Director of Trustfund
Pensions Plc, one of Nigeria's
largest Pension Fund Managers.
He was formerly Chairman of
Nahco FTZ Limited, a former
Director of Nahco Aviance Plc and
NASD Plc. He was appointed to
the Johannesburg Stock
Exchange, Africa Advisory Board
in September 2009. Bolaji is an
Economics (Honours) graduate of
the London School of Economics,
University of London.
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MR. KHALED
EL-DOKANI
GMD/CEO

Mr. El Dokani is a graduate of
Commerce & Accounting from
the Alexandria University,
Alexandria, Egypt and is a
Certified Public Accountant,
Delaware, USA. He started his
career with Coopers & Lybrand
Deloitte where he worked as
Audit Manager, after which he
assumed the following roles from
1997-1998 as Finance Manager,
Egyptian American Company,
Egypt; from 1992-2002 as Chief
Financial Officer, Diamond Bort,
Belgium and as Chief Financial
Officer, Egypt Cyber Center,
Egypt from 2002-2004.

He joined the LafargeHolcim
Group in 2004 where he
assumed various Senior
Executive positions as follows:
Country Chief Financial Officer,
Lafarge Algeria, VP Business
Development & Strategy for East
North America, Country General
Manager, Readymix, Aggregates
& Gypsum Saudi Arabia and
Country General Manager, Qatar.

In 2018, he was appointed as
Country CEO, Iran where he
successfully achieved a
turnaround in the business by
returning it back to acceptable
profit levels amongst other
commendable feats within
18months.

He was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer of Lafarge
Africa Plc on the 18th of January
2020.

MR. LOLU ALADE-
AKINYEMI
Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Lolu Alade-Akinyemi is a
certified accountant with 20
years of experience leading and
transforming Finance & Supply
Chain teams in complex,
multinational companies in the
United Kingdom, Belgium,
Ghana and Nigeria. He holds a
Master's degree in Business
Administration from the
Edinburgh Business School,
Scotland, UK and is currently the
Chief Financial Officer and
Supply Chain Director of Lafarge
Africa Plc.

Prior joining Lafarge in 2014, he
was Finance Director, PZ
Cussons Nigeria Plc, Head of
Business Operations &
Development Strategy, New
Business and Head of Supply
Chain & Operations, Coca-Cola
Bottling Company, Accra, Ghana,
Finance Manager (Group Office),
Coca-Cola Europe, Eurasia &
Middle East Group, London,
Finance Manager (Africa Group),
Coca-Cola Africa, Windsor, UK,
Europe Group Financial Shared
Service Center in Belgium,
Assistant Budget & Planning
Manager, Financial Accountant
and Treasury Officer at Coca-Cola
Nigeria Limited.

He was appointed to the Board
on the 8th of April 2020.

MR. ADEBODE
ADEFIOYE

Non-Executive
Director

Mr. Adebode Adefioye is an
entrepreneur, a possibility thinker
and a Chemist by training. He sits
on the Board of a number of
companies, both private and
publicly quoted in Nigeria, with
focus on continuous improvement,
good governance and long-term
sustainability of these
organizations. He joined the Board
of Lafarge Africa Plc in December
2012 and has served on several
committees. He has chaired a
couple of the Board committees,
including the Property Committee
and Finance and Strategy
Committee.

Mr Adefioye has over 35 years of
diverse experience serving clients
in manufacturing, agriculture, and
finance. He joined John Holt Plc. (a
conglomerate) as a Management
trainee in 1987, serving in diverse
managerial positions and fields
which include: sales, marketing,
quality assurance & control,
human resources management
administration and general
management.

He started his career at the
University of Lagos, as a Graduate
Assistant and Demonstrator in the
Department of Chemistry, where
he had a brief stint lecturing,
before leaving academia for
industry and the business world.

He is an alumnus of the University
of Lagos, where he obtained B.Sc.
(Hons) degree in Chemistry and
M.Sc. degree in Analytical
Chemistry. He is a member of the
Institute of Directors of Nigeria and
the Institute of Public Analysts.
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MRS. ELENDA
GIWA-AMU

Non-Executive
Director

Mrs. Elenda Ohirenua
Giwa-Amu is the CEO,
Chandrea Lifestyle
Limited, an Interior design
company. She was the
MD (Acting) Cross River
State Tourism Bureau and
Executive Secretary, Cross
River State Carnival
Commission, the prime
driver of Calabar Carnival,
which is regarded as
Cross River State's most
enduring brand.

She holds a B.Sc Honours
in Microbiology/Zoology,
from the University of
Maiduguri and an
Associate Degree in
Design Technology from
FIT New York. She is a
member of the Women in
Manufacturing (WIM)
Africa and previously,
Head, Private Banking,
Chartered Bank now
Stanbic IBTC.

She was appointed to the
Board of Lafarge Africa
Plc. on the 11th March
2015.
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MRS. ADENIKE
OGUNLESI

Independent
Non-Executive Director

Mrs. Adenike Ogunlesi is
the founder & Chief
Responsibility Officer of
Ruff 'n' Tumble, the
foremost indigenous
lifestyle brand operating to
international standards in
the design, manufacturing
and retail of children's
clothing.

Starting from the boot of
her car, she has turned Ruff
'n' Tumble into an instantly
recognizable brand. As an
entrepreneur of great vision
and determination, she has
built a reputation for being
the best manufacturer of
children's clothing, with a
network of stores
nationwide.

Mrs. Ogunlesi is a founding
member and the first
president of the Network of
Entrepreneurial Women
(NNEW) at the Nigeria
Employer's Consultative
Association (NECA). She
was an advisory board
member of the Enterprise
Development Centre (EDC)
at the Lagos Business
School. She is an advisory
board member and mentor
at WISCAR (Women in
Successful Careers) which
is a structured mentoring
programme for young
women, a mentor at the
Mara Foundation and an
avid motivational speaker.

She is a winner of
numerous awards and a
finalist at the CNBC AABLA
(All Africa Business Leaders
Awards) in the category of
the Business WWoman of the
year 2014 and 2015. She
was appointed to the Board
of Lafarge Africa Plc on the
11th March 2015.

MR. GRANT
EARNSHAW

Non-Executive
Director

Mr. Earnshaw holds a
Postgraduate Diploma in
Business Administration
from Edinburgh Business
School, and is a qualified
Civil Engineer from
Peterborough Technical
College UK. Grant has held
several positions at
LafargeHolcim, including
Senior VP & Head of
Integration, CEO of Lafarge
Irag, Group Vice President
Strategy, Development,
Mergers & Acquisitions and
Managing Director, Lafarge
Middle East. Prior to joining
LafargeHolcim group Grant
worked in Infrastructure
Project Management for 10
years with Balfour Beatty
Plc in the UK.

He is the Chairman of
Holcim Liban S.A.L, Board
member of Jordan Cement
P.S.C and a Fellow of the
Institute of Directors (UK).
Grant is currently
responsible for a portfolio
of countries across EMEA
at LafargeHolcim.

He was appointed to the
Board of Lafarge Africa Plc
on the 7th of April 2018.

MRS. KARINE
UZAN MERCIE

Non-Executive
Director

Mrs. Karine Uzan Mercie is
currently the Group Head
of Tax at LafargeHolcim.
Prior to joining
LafargeHolcim in 2018, she
occupied different positions
in Coca-Cola Enterprises
Inc., Altanta, USA, the
world largest Coca-Cola
bottler, including Vice-
President Corporate
Initiatives, Group Head of
Tax, Treasurer Europe and
Vice-President Public
Affairs & Communication,
France.

She was also Vice-
President Tax at Alstom in
Paris, France and
International Tax lawyer at
Ernst & Young in Paris,
France.

She is a lawyer and
member of the Paris Bar.
She is a knight of the legion
of honor of France. She co-
chairs the investment
committee of the
LafargeHolcim UK pension
fund, is a board member of
Puissance Elles, non-profit
French organisation.

She was appointed to the
Board of Lafarge Africa Plc
on the 21st of March 2019.
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MR. MARCO
LICATA

Non-Executive
Director

Mr. Marco Licata is
currently LafargeHolcim
Group General Counsel for
Middle East & Africa
Region.

Prior to joining
LafargeHolcim in 2019,
Marco was Legal Advisor
at Geoservices in Milan,
Italy; Director of the Legal
Department in Alstom;
General Counsel Onshore
Wind for General Electric,
USA,; General Counsel
Offshore Wind and
Sourcing Executive
Counsel in General Electric
in Paris, France.

He holds a Master of Laws
(LLM) degree from Albany
Law School, Albany New
York, USA. He acquired his
University Law degree
(Summa cum Laude),
Milan, Italy and Seton Hall
Law School, New jersey,
USA.

He was appointed to the

Board on the 21st of July
2019.
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MR. GBENGA
OYEBODE, MFR

Independent Non-Executive
Director

Mr. Gbenga Oyebode, MFR is a lawyer
with over 35 years of experience in
corporate and commercial practice and
holds an LL.M from the University of
Pennsylvania, Philadelphia, and LL.B
from the University of Ife. He is a fellow
of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators
(UK) (FCIArb) and the Nigerian
Leadership Initiative and a member of
the Nigeria Bar Association, the
American Bar Association, and the
International Bar Association (IBA)
amongst others. He was conferred
Doctor of Laws (Honoris Causa) by the
Ekiti State University, Ado Ekiti (2016)
and Elizade University, llara Mokin,
Ondo State, Nigeria (2017). He is the
Chancellor of Elizade University, llara
Mokin, Ondo State, Nigeria.

Mr. Oyebode, MFR was conferred with
one of Nigeria's highest honours, the
Member of the Order of the Federal
Republic of Nigeria (MFR) in the year
2000. He was also conferred with the
Belgian Royal Honour of 'Knight of the
Order of Leopold' in 2007

He was the Chairman of Access Bank
Plc (2005-2015), Director, MTN Nigeria
Plc (2001-2019) and Chairman, Okomu
Oil Palm Company (all listed on the
Nigerian Stock Exchange) and now
serves on the Boards of Nestle Nigeria
Plc and Socfinaf S.A (listed on the
Luxemburg Stock Exchange). He is the
Chairman of CFAO Nigeria Plc.

Mr. Oyebode MFR also sits on the
Africa Advisory Committee of the
Johannesburg Stock Exchange (JSE), is
the Chairman of Teach for Nigeria,
Director Teach for All, New York,
Member of the Global Advisory Council
of the Africa Leadership Academy,
Johannesburg, Director Jazz at the
Lincoln Centre, New York and Director
African Philanthropy Forum. Member
Board of Trustees Carnegie Hall, New
York, Member Board of Trustees Ford
Foundation, New York and Director
International Lawyers for Africa (ILFA),
London.

He is the founder and Chairman of the
management board of Aluko &
Oyebode (one of the largest integrated
law firms in Nigeria).

He was appointed to the Board on the
8th of April 2020.

MR. OLIVIER
GUITTON

Non-Executive
Director

Mr. Olivier Guitton holds a
Bachelor of Business
Administration, EDHEC
Business School, French
Instit des techniques de
Marches (ITM) with over 22
years work experience in the
transportation industry. He is
currently the Head of
Finance, Middle East & Africa
at Lafargeholcim.

Mr. Guitton has held various
positions within the
Bombardier Group as VP,
Finance, Asia, Bombardier
Transportation, Singapore,
VP, Finance Shared Service,
Bombardier Transportation,
France, Head of Finance,
South Europe, Director, Cash
Management, Bombardier
Capital, France, General
Manager and Division
Controller, Europe. He was
also the Group Deputy CFO &
Group Controller Louis
Dreyfus Company, France.

He was appointed to the
Board on the 8th of April
2020.

MRS. ADEWUNMI
ALODE

General Counsel &
Company Secretary

Mrs. Adewunmi Alode holds a
Bachelor of Laws degree from
the Lagos State University and
professional certification of a
Chartered Secretary from the
Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators
(ICSA) UK and Nigeria. She
was called to the Nigerian Bar
in 2005.

She has over 15years work
experience spanning legal
practice, corporate
transactions, project
management, company
secretariat, regulatory and
ethical compliance, litigation,
claims and dispute resolution
among others.

She was Company Secretary
of Unicorn Holdings Limited
before joining the Company
(then Lafarge Cement WAPCO
Nigeria Plc) in 2008 as a Legal
Officer. She rose to assume
several roles within the
Company including Company
Secretary of the previously
wholly-owned subsidiary,
Lafarge Ready Mix Nigeria
Limited, Compliance Officer,
Legal Manager and Senior
Legal Counsel for Commercial
Contracts.

She was appointed as the
Company Secretary to the
Board on the 12th of
December 2017 and General
Counsel in June 2019. In
2019, she was recognized and
awarded with the “40 under
40" award by ESQ Nigerian
Legal Awards. She was
equally ranked among the top
50 General Counsels in 2019.
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Leadership Team

-

Khaled EL-DOKANI
GMD/CEO

8 Helmut KORAK
Country Security Manager

Lolu ALADE-AKINYEMI
Chief Financial Officer

Olusegun SHOYOYE
Industrial Director

9 Folashade AMBROSE-MEDEBEM

Communications, Public Affairs &
Sustainable Development Director

Gbenga ONIMOWO
Commercial Director

10 Olufolake ODEGBAMI
Head of Safety, Health & Environment

Gbemiga OWOLABI
Organization & Human Resources Director

11 Bestow AKEZE
Head of Aggregates & Concrete

Ibrahim AMINU
Managing Director - Ashaka

12 Daniel ADEDOKUN
Head of Geocycle Nigeria

Adewunmi ALODE
General Counsel & Company Secretary
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13 Olajumoke ADEGUNLE
Head of Mortar
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Directors’ Report

The Directors are pleased to present the Annual
Report of Lafarge Africa Plc (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, “the Group”) along with the
audited consolidated and separate Financial
Statements of the Group for the year ended 31st
December, 2019.

LEGAL FORM

Lafarge Africa Plc, a public quoted company on The
Nigerian Stock Exchange was incorporated in
Nigeria under the Companies Act now Companies
and Allied Matters Act Cap C20 Laws of the
Federation of Nigeria 2004 on the 24th of February
1959. The Company became listed on the Nigerian
Stock Exchange in 1979. The name of the Company
was changed from Lafarge Cement WAPCO Nigeria
Plcto Lafarge Africa Plc on the 9th of July 2014.

SUBSIDIARIES

The Company has full ownership of Ashakacem
Limited and Wapsila Nigeria Limited. Lafarge South
Africa Holdings (Pty) Limited (LSAH) was also a fully
owned subsidiary until 31st July 2019 which was the
effective date of disposal of the subsidiary.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are
manufacturing and marketing of cement, concrete
and aggregates products, including the provision of
building solutions.

SUMMARY GROUP FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR
2019

2019 2018 %
N'million N'million | Change
Continuing Operation:
Revenue 212,999 | 217,813 -2%
Profit/(loss) before minimum tax| 17,892 (1,510)] 1285%
Minimum tax (677) - 100%
Profit/(loss) after minimum tax 17,215 (1,510)| 1240%
Income tax (expense) / credit (1,697) 9,607 -118%
Profit after tax 15,518 8,097 92%
Discontinued Operation:
Profit/(loss) after tax 99,587 (16,899) 689%

5.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors is proposing a dividend of N1
(One Naira) per ordinary share inissue amounting to
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N16,107,795,721.00 (2018:Nil). The total dividend
proposed if approved by shareholders is payable
from the pioneer profit reserve, hence not subject
to deduction of withholding tax. The dividend is
subject to approval by the shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting on the 3rd June, 2020.

SHAREHOLDING AND SUBSTANTIAL

SHAREHOLDERS

The issued and fully paid-up Share Capital of the
Company as at 31st December 2019 was
16,107,795,721 ordinary shares of 50kobo each.
The Register of Members show that two
companies: CariCement BV holding 56.04% and
Associated International Cement Limited (AIC UK)
holding 27.77% held more than 5% of the
Company's Issued share capital. The remaining
16.19% of the issued shares were held by other
institutions and individuals.

LafargeHolcim is an international investor holding
its shares in the names of its subsidiaries:
CariCement BV (56.04%) and AIC UK (27.77%).
Aside the aforementioned two companies, no other
shareholder held more than 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company asat31st December 2019.

PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Information relating to changes in property, plant &
equipment is disclosed in Note 16 to the Financial
Statements.

UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND AND SHARE
CERTIFICATES

Shareholders are hereby informed that a number of
shares certificates and dividend warrants have been
returned to the Registrars as “unclaimed”. Any
member affected by this notice is advised to write
to the office of the Company's registrar,
CardinalStone Registrars Limited. The list of
unclaimed dividend can be accessed at the
Registrar's office or via the Company's
website:www.lafarge.com.ng.

The Company’s Registrars has advised that the total
amount outstanding as at 31 December 2019 is
N1,392,026,942.30 and the sum of
N1,425,379,867.70 was returned to Lafarge Africa
Plc in line with the Rules of the Securities and
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Exchange Commission, leaving cash balance of 11. DONATIONS AND CHARITABLE GIFTS
N127,783,692. 38 with the Company's Registrars.

In 2019, Lafarge Africa Plc expended N992.6 million

9. DIRECTORS'INTERESTIN SHARES (2018: N 869 million) on diverse social investment

) ] ] programs and initiatives in our communities in
In accordance with sections 275 and 342 of the Companies S . . . .
Nigeria. The list of donations and charitable gifts are

and Allied Matters Act, cap C20 Laws of the Federation of ) e
as follows:

Governance

Nigeria 2004 and in compliance with the Listing Rules of the

Nigerian Stock Exchange, the interest of Directors in the - )
Community Development Projects

across Nigeria N674,601,237
The Lafarge Africa Plc National

issued share capital of the Company are as recorded in the

Register of Members and/or notified by them are as follows:

Lit C titi in 36 stat
DIRECTORS SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT MARCH 31, 2020 teracy Lompetition i <b siates

of the Federation 92,000,000
PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL: 16,107,795,721 Donations & Sponsorships N6,600,000
Roads N219,456,396
No. of No of No. of No of No of Total N992,657,633
No. of Indirect Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares
as at as at as at as at as at as at . . .
NAMES 31.03. 2020/ 31.03.2020| 31.12.201931.12.2019(31.12.2018 |31.12. 2018 In accordance with Section 38 (2) Companies and
MR. MOBOLAJI BALOGUN  [10,000,000|  Nil  [10,00000| Nil | 4,000,000| Wi Allied Matters Act Cap C20 Laws of the Federation
MR. KHALED EL DOKAN] *** Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil of Nigeria, 2004 which is also consistent with the
MR. MICHEL PUCHERCOS** Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil LafargeHolcim Group Donations Policy, the
MR. ADEBODE ADEFIOYE Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil ) i }
MRS. ELENDA GIWA-AMU 203,550 Nil 203,550 Nil 203,550 Nil Company did not make any donation or gift to any
MRS. ADENIKE OGUNLESI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil political party, political association or for any political
MR. CHRISTOF HASSIG** Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil urpose during the vear in review:
MR. GRANT EARNSHAW Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil purp 9 Y :
MR. ROSSEN PAPAZOV** Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
MR. JEAN-PHILIPPE BENARD ** Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 12. STATUTORY AUDIT COMMITTEE
MRS. KARINE UZAN MERCIE Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
MR. MARCO LICATA* Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
MR. LOLU ALADE-AKINYEMI***|  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Inaccordance with Section 359(3) of the Companies
MR. GBENGA OYEBODE MFR**{  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil .
nd Allied Matters Act 20 Laws of th
MR. OLIVIER GUITTON*** Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil a _ e a. € _S ct cap C O aws _O e
GRAND TOTAL 10,203,550 10,203,550 4,203,550 Federation of Nigeria, 2004, an Audit Committee of

the Company was constituted at the 60th Annual
General Meeting held in Lagos on the 22nd of July

Except as disclosed, none of the Directors has notified the o
2019 comprising of three (3) shareholders and three

Company of any discloseable interests in the Company's
(3) Board members namely: Mr. Adebayo Adeleke,

Mr. David Adekanmbi, Mr. Timothy Adejuwon
(shareholders' representatives) and Mrs. Elenda
Giwa-Amu, Mrs. Karine Uzan Mercie and Mr. Marco

Share capital and none of the Directors has an indirect
shareholding in the Company.

*The Director was appointed in 2019

** The Director has resigned from the Board

***The Director was appointed in 2020 Licata (Board members).

13. INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
10. DIRECTORS'INTERESTIN CONTRACTS
KPMG acted as the Company’s Independent Auditor

None of the Directors have notified the Company for the during the year under review. KPMG has indicated

purpose of Section 277 of the Companies and Allied
Matters Act (Cap C20 Laws of the Federation of Nigeria,
2004) that they were members or held shareholding of

their willingness to continue in office as
Independent Auditor in accordance with S.357(2) of

the Companies and Allied Matters Act 2004.
some specified companies which could be regarded as

interested in any contracts with which the Company was
involved as at31st December, 2019.
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The Board of Lafarge Africa Plc remains committed to the
highest standards of corporate governance, in order to
achieve long-term value and success for all stakeholder
groups comprising of customers, shareholders,
employees, creditors, suppliers and the communities in
which the Company operates.

Our Corporate Governance principles and practices are
further strengthened by adherence to the LafargeHolcim
Code of Business Conduct, which articulates the values,
ethics and business principles and also serve as the ethical
road map for the Company, its directors, employees and
stakeholders. The Code of Business Conduct is
supplemented with appropriate mechanism for reporting
any concerns pertaining to non-adherence.

The Company continues to adhere to the provisions of its
Memorandum and Articles of Association, the Companies
and Allied Matters Act (Cap C20 Laws of the Federation of
Nigeria, 2004), rules of the Nigerian Stock Exchange, the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), the Nigerian
Code of Corporate Governance 2018 (“the Nigerian Code”),
International Best Practices and other applicable
regulations. This report describes how the Board has been
complying with the applicable codes as well as best
practices in corporate governance.

. THEBOARD COMPOSITION AND ITS COMMITTEES

In accordance with the SEC and Nigerian Codes that the
Board should be of a sufficient size relative to the scale and
complexity of the Company's operations, the Company's
Articles of Association provides that the Company's Board
shall consist of not more than Eleven Directors. In 2019, the
Board comprised of Ten (10) Non-Executive Directors and
One (1) Executive Director, out of which are 3 female
directors and 8 male directors.

Presently, the Board is comprised of Two (2) Executive
Directors and Nine (9) Non-Executive Directors, out of
which 2 are Independent Directors. The composition of the
Board is a mix of Executives and Non-Executive Directors
with high level of competencies, experience and impressive
levels of achievement in their respective fields. Information
regarding directors holding concurrent directorships have
been disclosed to the Board and are available on pages 20
to 22 of this Report.

The position of the Group Managing Director (GMD / CEQO)
and the Chairman are held by separate persons. The GMD
/CEQ is not a chair of any of the Board Committees, neither
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is the Board Chairman a member or chair of any of the
Board Committees.

ROLE OF THE BOARD

The Board met regularly to consider the matters reserved
for it, set broad policies for the Company's business and
operations and ensures that a professional relationship is
maintained with the Company's auditors in order to
promote transparency in financial and non-financial
reporting. Furthermore, the Company has a conflict of
interest policy adhered to by the Board and Management

The role of the Board as contained in the Board Charter is
highlighted as follows:
To review and align goals, major plans of action,
annual budget and business plans with the overall
strategy of the Company.

To set performance objectives; monitor
implementation and oversee major capital
expenditure in line with approved budget.

To ensure the integrity of the Company's
accounting and financial reporting systems and
that appropriate systems are in place for
monitoring risk, financial control and compliance
with the laws.

Through Board Committees, to make
recommendations and take decisions of the Board
Committees. On issues of expenditure that may
arise outside the normal meeting schedule of the
full board.

Ratify duly approved recommendations and
decisions of the Board Committees.

The Board has supervisory responsibility for
overall budgetary planning, major treasury
planning, scientific and commercial strategies.
The Board is responsible for satisfying itself that
the planning procedure and the Company's overall
objectives are appropriate.

Periodic and regular review of actual business
performance relative to established objectives.

Review and approve internal controls and risk
management policies and processes.

Performance appraisal and compensation of
Board members, succession planning and
appointment, training, remuneration and
replacement of Board members and senior
executives.
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BOARD CHANGES

The under-listed Directors resigned from the Board of the
Company since the last Annual General Meeting:

Mr. Michel Puchercos w.e.f 17th January 2020

Mr. Jean-Philippe Benard w.e.f 24th January 2020

Mr. Christof Hassig w.e.f 7th April 2020

Mr. Rossen Papazov w.e.f 7th April 2020

To fill the vacancy created by the resignations of the above
Directors and upon the due consideration and
recommendation of the Board Nomination Governance
and Remuneration Committee, the following Directors
were appointed by the Board:

Mr. Marco Licata (Non-Executive Director) w.e.f 21st July
2019

Mr. Khaled El Dokani (Executive Director) w.e.f 18th
January 2020

Mr. Lolu Alade-Akinyemi (Executive Director) w.e.f 8th
April 2020

Mr. Gbenga Oyebode, MFR (Independent Non-Executive
Director) w.e.f 8th April 2020

Mr. Olivier Guitton (Non-Executive Director) w.e.f 8th April
2020

The profiles of Mr. Marco Licata, Mr. Khaled El Dokani, Mr.
Lolu Alade-Akinyemi, Mr. Gbenga Oyebode, MFR and Mr.
Olivier Guitton are available on pages 20 and 22 of this
Annual Report. Their appointment as Directors will be
presented for ratification by the Shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting scheduled to hold on 3rd June
2020.

RETIREMENT BY ROTATION

In accordance with Articles 97 to 99 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, one-third of all Non-
Executive Directors (rounded down) are offered for re-
election every year (depending on their tenure on the
Board) together with directors appointed by the Board
since the last General Meeting.

Pursuant to this, the Directors to retire by rotation and who
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election are Mr.
Grant Earnshaw and Mrs. Karine Uzan Mercie.

The profiles of the retiring Directors standing for re-
election are set out on page 21 of this Annual Report.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS' ATTENDANCE

In accordance with Section 258(2) of the Companies and
Allied Matters Act (Cap. C20 Laws of the Federation of
Nigeria 2004), the record of Director's attendance and
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meetings held during the year 2019 are detailed below
and will be available for inspection at the venue of the
Annual General Meeting.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board has a formal schedule of meetings each
year. In 2019, the Board met five (5) times in the course
of the year under review in line with the formal
schedule and met four (4) times for unscheduled
emergency meetings due to the Related Party
transactions (the divestment of Lafarge South Africa
Property Limited and merger between Lafarge Africa
Plc and Lafarge ReadyMix Nigeria Limited). The record
of attendance of the Directors at the scheduled
meetings is as follows:

Dates of scheduled Board meetings held in 2019: 21st
March 2019, 27th March 2019, 28th May 2019, 21st
July 2019, 16th September 2019 and 24th October
2019.

S/N  Name No. of Meetings
1. Mr. Mobolaji Balogun 6/6
2. Mr. Michel Puchercos 6/6
3. Dr. Shamsuddeen Usman CON, OFR 2/6
4. Mr. Adebode Adefioye 6/6
o} Mrs. Elenda Giwa-Amu 5/6
6. Mrs. Adenike Ogunlesi 6/6
7. Mr. Christof Hassig 4/6
8. Mr. Grant Earnshaw 4/6
9. Mr. Rossen Papazov 3/6
10. | Mr. Jean-Philippe Benard 4/6
11. | Mrs. Karine Uzan Mercie 4/6
12.|  Mr. Marco Licata 3/6
13.| Ms. Geraldine Picaud 1/6

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Finance and Strategy Committee

In accordance with the Committee's Terms of Reference
the Finance & Strategy Committee has the responsibility to
review and make recommendations to the Board of
Directors with respect to the Company's periodic and long-
term financial strategies and objectives.

The Committee held six (6) scheduled meetings and two (2)
emergency meetings in the year; the table below shows the
attendance of the members of the Committee at the
scheduled meetings held during the year:

Business

Governance
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Dates of the scheduled Finance and Strategy Committee
meetings held in 2019: 19th March 2019, 27th March 2019,
28th May 2019, 19th July 2019, 16th September 2019 and
22nd October 2019.

S/N Name No. of Meetings
1. Mr. Adebode Adefioye 6/6
2. Mr. Michel Puchercos 6/6
3. Mrs. Elenda Giwa-Amu 6/6
4. Mr. Christof Hassig 3/6
5. Mrs. Karine Uzan Mercie 5/6

Nomination Governance and Remuneration Committee
This Committee selects and reviews the skills and
experience required to be on the Board and meets as the
need arises to deliberate and make recommendation on the
Board skill mix and diversity, and remuneration of Directors
and senior executives of the Company in line with best
practices of Corporate Governance.

The Committee held six (6) meetings in the year 2019. The
table below shows the attendance of the members of the
Committee at the meetings:

Dates of Nomination and Remunerations Committee
meetings held in 2019: 21st March 2019, 21st July 2019,
17th September 2019, 24th October 2019, 8th November
2019 and 19th December 2019.

S/N NAME DESIGNATION No. of

Meetings
1. |Mrs. Elenda Giwa-Amu Chairman 6/6
2. |Mr. Adebode Adefioye Member 6/6
3. |Mrs. Adenike Ogunlesi Member 6/6
4. |Mr. Grant Earnshaw Member 4/6
5. |Mr. Jean-Philippe Benard Member 2/6

Risk Management & Ethics Committee

The Risk Management and Ethics Committee is saddled
with the responsibility of ensuring that the Company's
policy on ethics adequately impacts positively on its
business partners and stakeholders e.g. Customers,
Shareholders, Community, Government, Suppliers and the
public. The Committee also considers the nature, extent
and categories of the risks facing the Company, and the
likelihood of such risks materializing, the Company's ability
to reduce the incidence and the impact on its business, if
the risks do materialize.

The Committee met once on thel17th October 2019. The
table below shows the attendance of the members of the
Committee at the meetings:
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S/N| NAME DESIGNATION No. of

Meetings
1. |Mrs. Adenike Ogunlesi Chairman 11
2. |Mr. Christof Hassig Member 11
3. [Mr. Michel Puchercos Member 1Al
4. |Mr. Jean-Philippe Benard Member 1Al
5. |Mr. Marco Licata Member il

(iv) Property Optimization Committee

(v

~

This Committee is charged with the responsibility to ensure
the Company's properties are fully optimized. The
Committee met once (1) on 23rd October 2019. The table
below shows the attendance of the members of the
Committee at the meetings:

S/N| NAME DESIGNATION No. of

Meetings
1. | Mr. Adebode Adefioye Chairman 11
2. | Mrs. Adenike Ogunlesi Member 11
3. | Mr. Michel Puchercos Member 1Al
4. | Mr. Grant Earnshaw Member N
5. |Mrs. Karine Uzan Mercie| Member 1Al

Statutory Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established by virtue of the
statutory requirement of Section 359 of the Companies and
Allied Matters Act cap C20, Laws of the Federation of
Nigeria 2004. Details of the Committees' function is in
accordance with section 359 (6) of the Companies and
Allied Matters Act cap C20, Laws of the Federation of
Nigeria 2004.

Members and Directors of the Committee were elected
and nominated pursuant to Section 359 (4) of the said Act
and will serve on the Committee till the conclusion of the
next Annual General Meeting.

The Committee held three (3) scheduled and two (2)
unscheduled meetings during the year. The table below
shows the attendance of the members of the Committee at
the meetings.

Dates of Audit Committee meetings held in 2019: 19th
March 2019, 26th March 2019, 24th May 2019, 28th May
2019and 22nd October 2019.
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S/N NAME DESIGNATION| No. of
Meetings
1. |Mr. Adebayo Adeleke Chairman 5/b
2. |Mr. Adejuwon Timothy Ademola’| Member 1/5
3. |Mr. Adekanmbi David Ademola* | Member 1/5
4. |Mrs. Elenda Giwa-Amu Member 4/5
5. [Mrs. Karine Uzan Mercie** Member 2/5
6. [Mr. Marco Licata* Member 1/5
7. |Mr. Olawale Oyedele*** Member 4/5
8. |Chief Peter Asu*** Member 3/5

* became a member of the Committee in July 2019
**became a member of the Committee in May 2019
*** ceased to be a member of the Committee in July 2019

BOARD PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

In line with the SEC and the Nigerian Code of Corporate
Governance, an assessment of the Board's performance
was facilitated by DCSL Corporate Services Limited, an
independent external consultant.

The Board Evaluation showed that the Board was satisfied
with the individual and collective contributions of each
Director at the Board and Committee meetings. However,
the Board also identified areas of focus and improvements
with the aim to continuously achieve and deliver its
set goals in accordance with good corporate governance
practices

INDUCTION & CONTINUING TRAINING FOR
DIRECTORS

All newly appointed directors participated in the
Company's formal Orientation Program. This orientation
includes presentations intended to familiarize new
directors with the Company's operations, strategic plans,
its compliance programs, its Code of Business Conduct
and Ethics, its principal officers, its internal and
independent auditors, the Company's shareholding
structure, Board plan, health and safety policy among
others.

The Nomination Governance and Remuneration
Committee has the responsibility to ensure existing
directors stay current with the Company's business and
objectives as well as relevant industry information and
corporate governance requirements and best practices.

10. LEADERSHIP TEAM

The Group Managing Director/CEO has the overall
responsibility for executing the Company's long term
strategy with a view to creating sustainable shareholder
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11.

12.

13.

value. The GMD/CEQO manages the day-to-day operations of
the Company and ensures that the operations are
consistent with the policies approved by the Board.

The GMD/CEOQ acts as the Head of the Leadership Team and
is responsible for ensuring that a culture of integrity and
legal compliance is imbibed. He ensures that the Directors
are provided with sufficient information to support their
decision making.

The Leadership Team is made up of the Company's
Executives. They meet often to deliberate on critical issues
affecting the day-to-day running of the Company. They can
be seen on page 23 of this Annual Report.

DEALING IN COMPANY SECURITIES

The Company formulated an Insider Trading Policy, in line
with the provisions of the Investment & Securities Act 2007,
the Nigerian Stock Exchange Post-Listing Rules and the
LafargeHolcim Directive on Trade Restriction Market
Disclosure which prohibits Directors, employees and any
other person in possession of insider information from
dealing with the Company's shares at least 14days before
its publication and 24hours after its publication (Non-
Authorised Trading Periods).

The Company's Directors and employees are therefore
notified and prohibited from dealing in the Company's
shares during the Non-Authorised Trading Periods, in
accordance with the Investment and Securities Act, 2007,
the Post Listing Rules of the Nigerian Stock Exchange and
the Company's policy on Insider Trading.

WHISTLE BLOWING

The Company is committed to conducting its affairs
ethically and responsibly. We have established a culture
where employees feel comfortable raising concerns about
potential and actual breaches of our Code of Business
Conduct or policies. A breach may be reported either
through our integrity line (https://integrity.lafargeholcim.com)

and 01-4607779 or external whistle blowing process
available on the Company's website.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has the responsibility of safeguarding the
maintenance of a sound system of internal control and risk
management, and regularly receives reports from the Risk
Managementand Ethics Committee on the effectiveness of
the Company's risk management processes to support its
strategy and objectives.

Business
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14.

15.

16.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board and Management of the Company ensures that
communication and dissemination of information
regarding the operations of the Company to shareholders,
stakeholders, potential investors and general public is
timely, accurate and continuous.

In compliance with the requirements of the Securities &
Exchange Commission's Rules Relating to the Complaints
Management Framework of the Nigerian Capital Market
issued on 16th February, 2015 and The Nigerian Stock
Exchange Directive issued on 22nd April, 2015 to all listed
Companies, the Company has put in place a Complaints
Management Framework Policy.

The Complaints Management Framework Policy sets out
the broad framework by which Lafarge Africa Plc
(“Lafarge” or “the Company”) and its Registrar will provide
assistance regarding shareholder issues and concerns. It
also provides the opportunity for Lafarge's shareholders to
provide feedback to the Company on matters that affect
shareholders.

This Policy is directly accessible on the Company's
website; www.lafarge.com.ng. In addition, information on
the performance of the Company and other major
corporate information are also available to shareholders in
particular and the general public at the Company's
website:www.lafarge.com.ng

STAKEHOLDERS' ENGAGEMENT

The Company strives to pro-actively engage her
stakeholders through regular and constructive dialogues in
order to anticipate and manage changes and, ultimately,
partner together in order to create shared values. The
Company considers its stakeholders as those who have
influence over its activities as well as those who are
impacted by them. The Company interacts and engages in
a sustained dialogue with a broad spectrum of
stakeholders atall levels.

ETHICS AND CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT

The Company has adopted the LafargeHolcim Code on
Ethics and Business Conduct. LafargeHolcim's Code of
Business Conduct ensures that all directors, officers and
employees share LafargeHolcim's commitment to
conducting business with integrity, and provides guidance
on how to put this commitment into practice. It also helps
to ensure that we are adhering to the laws and regulations
inthe countries in which we operate.

Lafarge Africa Plc 2019 Annual Report & Accounts

17.

We strive to ensure all suppliers adhere to principles set
forth in the LafargeHolcim Supplier Code of Conduct,
particularly principles on human rights, labor related
issues, environment, anti-bribery and corruption.

EMPLOYEES AND EMPLOYMENT

Employment of Physically- Challenged Persons
Lafarge Africa Plc is an equal opportunity employer and
does not discriminate on any grounds. Therefore we
provide employment opportunities to physically
challenged persons bearing in mind the respective
abilities of the applicants concerned. In the event that an
employee becomes physically challenged while in the
employment of the Company, every effort is made to
ensure that their employment with the Company
continues and that appropriate training and support is
given to them. The Company has one physically
challenged person in its employment.

Employee Engagement and Training

Lafarge Africa continues to strengthen its commitment to
building a culture where employees are aligned with
corporate outcomes and are able to perform at their very
best. In 2019, several programmes were implemented to
foster a culture that promotes frequent interaction and
accessibility across all levels of the organisation.
Programmes such as regular engagement meetings with
teams, individual check in sessions and team retreats
were designed to strengthen the integral communication
structure of the business thereby providing clarity on
business direction, increasing participation and
involvement of employees in business improvement
drive and encouraging innovation and creativity of our
workforce.

The Lafarge Sports Day which held in September 2019
across all locations provided a platform for interaction
and bonding amongst employees and their families.
These events were packed with fun activities for
employees and their children, and had in attendance
members of the Leadership team at the grand finale in
Lagos.

As the organization continues to evolve, we continue to
equip our employees with both technical and
management skills to hone their competencies, to
prepare them to cope with challenging environments and
a sustainable future.
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Health, Safety and Welfare

Our Biennial Comprehensive Medical Tests for all
employees focused on lifestyle screening, nutrition,
work-related disorders and cancers. Individual
reports were confidentially interpreted to all
participants and further reinforced with health
awareness talks atall locations.

18. ANTI-BRIBERY AND CORRUPTION STATEMENT
The Board of Directors adopted the Anti-Bribery and
Corruption Statement below in accordance with
global best practices and the Company's
commitment to upholding the highest standards of
Corporate Governance. The Anti-Bribery &
Corruption Statement provides that:

“Lafarge Africa Plc (the “Company”) is committed to:
Conducting its business dealings and
relationships in an ethical manner and with the
highest level of integrity, in accordance with
LafargeHolcim Group's Anti-Bribery and
Corruption policies included in the
LafargeHolcim’s Code of Business Conduct, as
well as applicable laws;

- Complying with relevant Anti-Bribery and
Corruption laws such as Corrupt Practices and
other Related Offences Act of 2000 and the UK
Bribery Act of 2010 regardless of the business
environment we operate in.

- Ensuring the implementation and enforcement
of effective systems to counter the risks of
bribery and corrupt practices in the form of gifts
and entertainment, reciprocal agreements,
favours, discounts, travel, education, donations
and other forms of improper benefits for which
the Company could be held liable;

- Prohibiting the Company as well as third parties
acting on its behalf from engaging in fraudulent
acts, corrupt practices and all forms of bribery,
gratification, attempting to obtain gratification,
facilitation payments, and improper payments
or benefits to public officials, their family
members and other individuals.”
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Lafarge Africa commits to comply with the Group
Directives and comply with applicable law on anti-
bribery and corruption as well as ensure that its
business practices reflect this commitment.

19.DATA PROTECTION STATEMENT

In line with the Nigerian Data Protection Regulation,
2019 (NDPR), the Company has put in place
mechanisms to ensure that the collection and
processing of personal data from customers, suppliers,
stakeholders as well as employees of the Company
comply with the requirements of the NDPR. The
Company's privacy policy, which can be found on its
website https://www.lafarge.com.ng/privacy-policy,

explains how Lafarge processes personal data in its

possession and the rights and options available to the
data subject. Lafarge is committed to ensuring full
compliance with the NDPR and has deployed requisite
resources towards its achievement.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

ADEWUNMI ALODE (MRS.)
FRC/2018/ICSAN/00000017796
General Counsel & Company Secretary
Dated 30th March 2020.
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BUILD EASY WITH
LAFARGE

Easy Home

Lafarge Easy Home is an
innovative affordable

housing initiative that

provides individual home
builders with access to free
designs, free bill of quantity 4
(BOQ) trusted builders, /
mortgage and dedicated
retailers.

EASY HOME

General Use Cement

Lafarge General Use cement are products that
offer reliable quality and high performance to
the requirement of a wide range of concrete
application such as; foundation, columns,
beams, unreinforced light industrial works,
reinforced concrete, mass concrete and
masonry works (plastering and bricklaying).
These products are known for very smooth
finish and good workability.

Elephant Supaset

is a fast setting cement that is specifically formulated
for block making, interlocking, well rings , poles and
spun concrete pipe manufacturing. The product is
characterised by rapid strength development.

Call us to order now 01-2713990

customerservicengalafargeholcim.com ARGE
r Lithes

Building bt

A member of ] ( }
LafargeHolcim f aLafargeAfricaPlc ¥ @iLafarge_Africa |O) @lLafarge_Africa
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Through 2019, our Company continued to consolidate on sustainability by
leveraging our updated Sustainability Strategy. We adopted the Group's
approach of ensuring a complete alignment between sustainability
ambitions and Strategy 2022 - “Building for Growth”. As a result, the

Company’s 2030 Plan and its targets has evolved as follows:

&

CLIMATE
AND EMERGY

We consistently reduce
CO? emissions year after
year.

In Nigeria, we are
pioneers and leader in
co-proessing of biomass
as an alternative fuelona
large scale, and we are
committed to cleaner
cities through Geocycle.

The core pillars of our strategy are:
Climate and Energy, Circular Economy,
Environment and Community.
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ENVIRONMENT

We have developed and
implemented
rehabilitation plans for our
quarries to ensure we
protect the fauna and
flora.

We engage and partner
with our stakeholders
through a robust
stakeholder mapping

process.
Our vision is to be

recognized as an
innovative business
leader, demonstrating
shared values in our
operating communities
alike, enabling social,
economic and
environmental sustainable
development, for the
benefit and in close
partnership with all our

stakeholders.
We benchmark our efforts

and initiatives against the
17 United Nations
Sustainable Development
Goals (SDGs) and partner
with organizations and
agencies to complement
the Federal Government of
Nigeria's efforts to create
value for our shareholders,
customers, employees,
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Top left: Professor Chris
Ogbechie of the Lagos Business
School Sustainability Centre with
Folashade Ambrose Medebem,
communications, Public Affairs
and Sustainable Development
Director and Mrs Adejoke
Orelope-Adefulire, senior Special
Assistant to the President on
Sustainable Development goals at
the 2018 Sustainability Report
Launch

A

[ |
Climate and Energy

Our commitment to reducing emissions
is undeterred. In 2019, we reduced our
dust emissions at kiln stack by 28% and
reduced net Co? per tonne of
cementitious material by 1.3% to 535
kg/t (compared to 2018). We are 100%
compliant to the Environment
Protection Authority Guidelines, and
continue to implement our quarry
rehabilitation plan.

Circular Economy

Co-Processing: Eliminating
Production waste in Nigeria

We continue to use waste materials and
by-products from other industries as
alternatives to finite natural raw
materials and fossil fuels in our
production process.

Our Geocycle operation drives the use
of alternative fuels such as biomass
(agricultural waste) and non-
degradable parts of pharmaceutical
drugs and condiment wrappers in our
kilns in Sagamu and Ewekoro. Our
other Plants are in the early phases of
adopting the Geocycle plan with
customized waste options across each
region, ranging from tyres and plastic to
municipal and industrial waste.

Beyond utilizing resources that have
been condemned as waste, this circular
economy model also empowers local
communities where we have impacted
over 300 farmers. In addition to cost
reduction, the use of alternative fuels
protects the environment because it
eliminates open burning of waste, thus
decreasing pollution.
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Contributing to Environmental
Sustainability

We are committed to reducing our
environmental impact by ensuring all
our operations comply with
environmental laws, regulations and
standards applicable to our products
and operations, and we continuously
subscribe to leading industry
initiatives. Most of our plants are EMS
certified to ISO 14001:2015.

We ensure our plants operate strong
and robust environmental
management systems which are fully
in alignment with the LafargeHolcim
Group's Sustainability Strategy. Guided
by this, we are committed to
preserving natural resources and to
further reduce environmental and Co?
footprint through systematic
management of the clinker-cement
factor, energy efficiency and fuel mix,
including the use of alternative fuels.
Our Mfamosing Plant was able to
achieve 5% reduction in specific net
Co? emissionsagainst2018.

On water management, we are
committed to reducing freshwater

withdrawals; water impacts to the
environment and also support
sustainability of water resources
especially by making provision for
water scarce areas. Our dry process
plants are built with water recirculation
systems to encourage reuse and
recycling of processed water. Our
Ewekoro Plant reduced its freshwater
withdrawal by 12% (56 L/t clinker).

We developed a rehabilitation and
reclamation plan for all our pit and
quarry sites that takes into account the
needs and expectations of our
stakeholders and implement
biodiversity management plans for all
extraction sites to protect important
areas or habitats and to facilitate the
conservation of historic remains
discovered during site development
and quarry operations.

A total of 26,000 tree seedlings were
planted in our Sagamu, Ewekoro,
Mfamosing, Maiganga and Ashaka
quarries this year and so far 397,500
indigenous trees have been planted
across our quarry sites in the country
from 2011 till date.
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A cross section of 4000 Hectares of land in Gombe State,
21 used for the Agriculture Ecology Project.

2 3 year old rehabilitation site in Ewekoro
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In 2019, we planted 26,000 trees in line with our
commitment with our Quarry Rehabilitation.

We have updated the design of our processes and
structures to ensure that we do not diminish the
social, economic and ecological processes that are
necessary to promote sustainable communities

across the areas of diversity, empowerment, gender
equity and more.

ate Profile
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Co-creating Value for Impact:

Opportunities in Circt
Economy & C

16TH JULY,"

A

—

A group of panel discussants at the inaugural Sustainability
forum with the theme 'Co-creating value for impact -
7 opportunities in circular economy and co-processing.

In 2019, we expanded our engagement with
communities through 51 Community
Relations Council (CRC) meetings across all
our host communities. This culminated in l ! 4
Community Days where community | ¢
development projects were commissioned, 'b[ s e

with traditional rulers and senior state Middle Left: Commissioning of a health centre during the Ewekoro
government delegates in attendance. Commun_ity Day. Representing the CCEO is Marie-Christine Kaul flanked by
community leaders.

=y —

In total, the Company invested over 900
million Naira in societal impact initiatives and
projects within and beyond our host
communities under 4 core pillars: Health and
Safety, Education Shelter/Infrastructure, and
Economic/Youth Empowerment.

-k

institution beneficiaries in Ashaka by the Managing Director
—, of Ashakacem, Ibrahim Aminu.

Lafarge Africa Plc 2019 Annual Report & Accounts



37 Sustainability Report

Governance

Communities’- the Company's
employee volunteering initiative
dedicated over 4,300 work hours to
community improvement projects
such as literacy
engagement/mentorship sessions
with primary and secondary school
pupils, tree planting, donation of
stationery and school sandals, visits
to orphanages, among other
impactful initiatives.

Increasing digital
literacy among primary

school children
N

TENTIAEY BUNEFRCARAREY
wREE WELL A

jis ATHRAL §

Presentation of bursary awards
to beneficiaries from tertiary
institution beneficiaries of LAP
in Mfamosing. S

Lafarge Africa Plc 2019 Annual Report & Accounts



38 Sustainability Report

Lafarge Africa commemorates the World
Environment Day with a tree planting exercise

in Lagos.
A

Sustainability Week

Guests at the Forum included
Panel Moderator,

Bekeme Masade-Olowola,
CEO of CSR-In-Action and
Board Member, Global
Reporting Initiative (GRI)

Ini Abimbola, CEO
ThistlePraxis Consulting

Partnership For The Goals
A'S SUSTAINABLE DE

ixal compact natwork

The Communications, Public Affairs and
Sustainable Development Director,
Folashade Ambrose-Medebem joined the
former Emir of Kano, HRH Muhammadu
Sanusi ll, the CEO & Executive Director of
the Global Compact, Lise Kingo and the
Vice Chairman, Africa Standard Chartered
Bank, Bola Adesola and other stakeholders
during the Global Compact Network Nigeria
roundtable discussion on 'Bridging Nigeria's
Sustainable Development Gap'.
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» 1 Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

in relation to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

The Directors accept responsibility for the preparation of the annual consolidated and separate financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS)and in the manner required by the Companies and Allied Matters Act Cap C 20, Laws of the Federation of
Nigeria, 2004 and the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act2011.

The Directors further accept responsibility for maintaining accounting records as required by the Companies
and Allied Matters Act Cap C 20, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004 and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatements whether due to fraud or error.

The Directors have made an assessment of the Company's ability to continue as a going concern and have no
reason to believe the Group and Company will not remain a going concern in the year ahead.

> N
.
Mobolaji Balogun Khaled Abdel Aziz El Dokani
Chairman Group Managing Director
FRC/2013/CISN/00000004945 FRC/2020/003/00000020762
Date: 30th March 2020 Date: 30th March 2020
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© 5 Audit Committee's Report

In accordance with Section 359 (6) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, cap C20, Laws of the Federation
of Nigeria, 2004 (CAMA), we, the members of the Audit Committee have reviewed and considered the
Auditor's Report required to be made in accordance with Section 359 (3) of CAMA and report as follows:

i.  We have reviewed the scope and planning of the audit requirements.

i. We have reviewed the External Auditors' Management Letter for the year ended together with
Management's responses.

iii. We also ascertained that the accounting and reporting policies of the Company for the year ended 31st
December 2019 are in accordance with legal requirements and agreed ethical practices.

In our opinion, the scope and planning of the audit for the year ended 31st December 2019 were adequate
and Management's responses to the Auditors' findings were satisfactory.

Jealilf

Mr. Adebayo Adeleke
FRC/2013/NIM/00000002317
Chairman, Audit Committee

Dated 27th of March 2020

Audit Committee Members

Mr. Adebayo Adeleke Shareholder Representative
Mr. David Adekanmbi Shareholder Representative
Mr. Timothy Adejuwon Shareholder Representative
Mrs. Elenda Giwa-Amu Non - Executive Director
Mrs. Karine Uzan Mercie Non - Executive Director
Mr. Marco Licata Non - Executive Director
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» y Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer Certification

In line with Section 60 (2) of the Investment and Securities Act (ISA) No. 29 of 2007, the Group Managing
Director/Chief Executive Officer (GMD/CEQ) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) hereby certify as follows:

Governance

1. That we have reviewed the report;

2. Thatbased on our knowledge, the report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact that would make the statement misleading in the light of the circumstances under which such
statement was made.

3. That based on our knowledge, the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st December 2019 and
other financial information included in the report fairly present in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of the operations of the Company as of, and for the periods presented in the report. £=

4.  Thatwe are designated officers of the Company and:

i Areresponsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls

i Have designed such internal controls to ensure that material information relating to the Company and its
consolidated subsidiaries is made known to such officers by others within those entities particularly during the
period in which this report was prepared,;

iii. Haveevaluated the effectiveness of the Company's internal controls as of date within 90 days prior to this report;

iv. ~ Hereby confirm the effectiveness of the Company's internal controls based on our evaluation during the
preparation of this report.

5. Thatwe have disclosed to the Auditors of the Company and Audit Committee:

i All significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which would adversely affect the
Company's ability to record, process, summaries and report financial data and have identified for the Company's
Auditors any material weakness in internal controls and

ii.  Anyfraud, whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role in the
company's internal controls;

iii.  Haveidentified inthe report whether or not there were significant changes in internal controls or other factors that
could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of their evaluation, including any corrective
actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

. IE-H_.. I;I_Il A
W 23 Wy

o =
LOLU ALADE-AKINYEMI KHALED EL-DOKANI
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER GMD/CEO
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\J Report of the Independent Auditor

KPMG Profassional Services Talephone 234(1) 271 8255
EPMG Tower 234(1) 271 8520
Bishop Aboysde Code Street )

KP Vistora. lsiand Imernat: krome.kpmaling
PME 40014, Falomo
Lagos

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Shareholders of Lafarge Africa Pl

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consclidated and separate financial statements of Lafarge Africa Plc (“the Company ") and its
subsidiaries {together, "the Group”), which comprise the consolidated and separate statements of financial
position as at 31 December, 2019, and the consolidated and separate statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated and separate staternents of changes in eguity and consolidated and separate
staternents of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, as set out on pages 47 1o 116.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated and separate financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated and separate financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 December, 2019, and of
its consolidated and separate financial performance and its consolidated and separate cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and in the manner required by the
Companies and Allied Matters Act, Cap C.20, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004 and the Financial Reparting
Council of Nigaria Act, 2011,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (1ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consclidated and
separate Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group and Company in accordance
with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA
Codel together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to cur audit of the consolidated and separate
financial statermeants in Nigeria and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requiraments and the |[ESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgrment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consclidated and separate financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

kPG Profassional Seracas, o Fartnership astatdishad undar Migara law, A ik O Lam e Aaugoen & Dyalam) Adekinin b Elkbinn Adctola P Adeyaim

i @ member of KPWMG Imtemational Coopantive ("KPMG - Inlemataonal’|, Agairetiny K Apingl Agtradn (3 CHorrol e Akirpnn Anhm Apnami L Sakmi

a s entiy. Al rghts redened fymdeie H, Othihiam Chibuzor 8§, Aimyminecty  Chineme 8. Maigbo
Meodack © O LS TR, BT T T pocara T Eimaizs-Engha
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1. Other Assets - Prepaid gas assets

Refer to significant accounting policies (Mote 2) and Other assets (Mote 21.1) on the separate financial

| _statements.

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Company has a gas. supply contract which
reguires that on a monthly basis, an agreed sum
known as the base amount is paid by the Company
for the supply of a specified quantity of gasin future
regardless of the Company's ability 1o utilise the
gas, Any excess of the base amount over the value
of actual gas utilised is recognised as prepaid gas
assets which is included in other assets in the
financial statements

Management performed an assessment to determing
whether the prepaid gas asset is recoverable since
the amount has continued to increase over the years
and has shown a significant increase in the current
year. This assassment involved a determination of
future gas utilization based on assumptions such as
future production volumes, forecasted growth rates
and utilisation lavels as well as the abilivy of the
vendor to fulfill its obligations under the terms of the
contract,

This is & key audit matter due to the significant
estimatien uncertainty and judgments applied in the
recoverability assessment,

Cur audit procedures included the following:

e We discussad with management to
understand if any significant changes hawe
been made to the assumptions used in
estimating the utilisaticn plan for the
prepaid gas amount.

» We evaluated the appropriateness of the
assumptions applied to key inputs such as
production volumes, forecasted growth
rates, projected utilization levels and the
ability of the vendor to fulfill its obligations
under the terms of the contract, among
other assurmnptions and compared these
with our own assessments based on our
knowledge of the Company and the
industry.

= \Wa evaluated the feasibility analysis
performed by management on the
cement and clinker shipments to other
plants within the group.

s  Evaluated the sensitivity analysis around
the key judgments.

s We reviewed the appropriateness of the
classification / disclosure of the
prepayment for gas in the financial
statements.

2. Recognition and recoverability of deferred tax assets

Refer 1o significant accounting paolicies (Note 2} and Deferred taxation (Mote 14.7) on the separate financial

statements.

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Company’s deferred tax asset includes
compenants relating to the picneer business based
on the picneer tax relief granted on 15 March 2019
an ana of the Company’s proeduction lines in
Mfamaosing plant.

The determination of the recognition and
recovarability of deferred 1ax assets involves
significant judgment and high estimation

Qur audit procedures included the following:

s Asgessed the components that gave rise
to the deferred tax asset to determing
whather they were recognised in
accordance with the requirements of the
accounting standards and tax laws and in
ling with correspondence from the tax
authaorities.

Latarpe Adrica Pic 2018 Annual Rapon & Accounts
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3. Determination of gain on disposal of discontinued operation in the consolidated financial
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Consolidated and Separate Statements of Profit
or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended

Continuing operations:

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling and marketing expenses

Administrative expenses

Other income

Impairment reversal/(loss) on trade receivables
Other operating expenses

Operating profit

Finance income

Finance costs

Impairment loss on investments in subsidiaries
Loss on disposal of investment in subsidiary
Profit/(loss) before minimum tax from continuing operations

Minimum tax

Profit/(loss) after minimum tax from continuing operations

Income tax (expense) / credit
Profit after tax from continuing operations

Discontinued operation:

Profit/(loss) after tax from discontinued operation
Profit/(loss) after tax for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations

Items that will not be subsequently reclassified into profit or loss:

Remeasurements of defined benefit obligations
Income tax relating to defined benefit obligations

Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

Profit/(loss) attributable to :
- Owners

- Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year is attributable to:
- Owners
- Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the
Company:

Continuing operations & discontinued operation

Basic earnings/(loss) per share (Naira)

Diluted earnings per share (Naira)

Continuing operations

Basic earnings per share (Naira)

Diluted earnings per share (Naira)

Notes

10
1.2
1

12 (a)
12 (b)
13
18.2.4
15

14.1

141

18.2.1

28

33.2
143

18.3

18.3

26
26

26
26

Group Company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2019* 2018** 2019%** 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
212,999,066 217,813,136 188,407,004 187,043,475
(157,046,768) (150,701,035) (132,507,527) (123,009,569)
55,952,298 67,112,101 55,899,477 64,033,906
(5,095,600) (3,897,927) (5,078,123) (3,891,305)
(17,559,792) (24,877,815) (16,927,429) (23,440,838)
2,351,701 1,382,008 10,041,175 1,293,329
25,862 (74,326) 34,180 (44,835)
(764,261) (1,115,728) (689,846) (463,615)
34,910,208 38,528,313 43,279,434 37,486,642
3,158,586 1,524,802 2,826,859 1,317,064
(20,176,509) (41,562,883) (20,950,366) (43,037,415)
= - = (3,174,874)

= - (837,910) -
17,892,285 (1,509,768) 24,318,017 (7,408,583)
(677,319) - (677,319) -
17,214,966 (1,509,768) 23,640,698 (7,408,583)
(1,697,180) 9,606,799 (919,082) 11,550,347
15,517,786 8,097,031 22,721,616 4,141,764
99,586,566 (16,898,757) = -
115,104,352 (8,801,726) 22,721,616 4,141,764
= (571,382) = -
- (571,382) - -

(95,807) 186,391 (95,807) 55,314
30,659 (54,401) 30,659 (17,700)
(65,148) 131,990 (65,148) 37,614
(65,148) (439,392) (65,148) 37,614
115,039,204 (9,241,118) 22,656,468 4,179,378
115,104,352 (9,107,048) 22,721,616 4,141,764
= 305,322 = _
115,104,352 (8,801,726) 22,721,616 4,141,764
115,039,204 (9,546,440) 22,656,468 4,179,378
- 305,322 - -

115,039,204 (9,241,118) 22,656,468 4,179,378
715 (105) 141 48

715 (105) 141 48

96 93 141 48

96 93 141 48

*The group income statement for 2019 has been presented in line with IFRS 5 (Non current assets held for sale and discontinued operations) i.e. Profit/(loss) after tax from

discontinued operation has been shown as a separate line on the income statement.

** Comparative information for the profit or loss and the related notes has been re-presented to separately disclose the profit/loss from discontinued operation in 2018. See note

18.2

***Subsequent to the merger of the Company with Lafarge Readymix Nig Ltd during the year, the 2019 Company numbers include the merged entity's financial result which
covers January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019. The 2018 Company numbers are those of the Company prior to the merger .

The accompanying notes and significant accounting policies on pages 52to 116 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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1 y Consolidated and Separate Statements of Financial Position

as at

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Investments in subsidiaries
Other financial assets

Other assets

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Current tax assets

Other assets

Other financial assets
Derivative assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Employee benefit obligations
Deferred income

Provisions

Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Loans and borrowings
Deferred income

Bank overdrafts
Derivative liabilities
Trade and other payables
Provisions

Current tax liabilities
Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

EQUITY

Share capital
Share premium
Retained earnings

Foreign currency translation reserve

Other reserves arising on business combination and re-organisations
Capital and reserves attributable to owners

Non-controlling interests
Total equity

Total equity and liabilities

Netes

16
17
18.1
19
21
14.7

22
23
14.4
21
19
20
24

30
33
32
31
14.7

30
32
24.2
20
34
31
14.5

25.1
25.2

28
29

18.3

Group Company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2019** 2018 2019*** 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
369,797,229 394,488,764 308,650,770 291,775,732
3,202,068 6,194,518 2,506,810 3,204,505
- - 63,906,867 178,923,532
767,253 1,301,148 767,253 1,134,509
20,345,783 16,671,760 18,772,032 15,073,457
27,994,154 28,720,032 27,994,154 27,950,907
422,106,487 447,376,222 422,597,886 518,062,642
32,440,770 47,156,521 25,679,521 28,921,467
8,193,050 21,163,994 20,452,686 11,167,705

- 658,291 - -
6,302,759 10,594,409 4,958,939 8,661,903
1,005,200 1,140,956 1,001,586 605,230
- 95,573 - 95,573
27,103,942 12,550,697 25,391,035 10,177,776
75,045,721 93,360,441 77,483,767 59,629,654
497,152,208 540,736,663 500,081,653 577,692,296
52,664,863 172,373,209 45,899,963 144,391,743
1,876,124 4,729,183 1,651,651 1,611,411
2,307,466 2,697,602 1,345,039 1,455,770
1,011,285 3,645,751 547,403 618,970

9,966,699 10,200,112 - -
67,826,437 193,545,857 49,444,056 148,077,894
11,520,252 93,833,850 14,666,562 105,685,719
539,263 315,452 110,732 110,732
27,552 35,280,945 27,552 16,862,345
- 244,176 - 244,176
69,717,897 80,537,816 72,577,646 49,921,178
677,349 1,281,247 604,451 845,328
1,929,457 1,156,231 1,229,095 201,199
84,411,770 212,649,717 89,216,038 173,870,677
152,238,207 406,195,574 138,660,094 321,948,571
8,053,899 4,336,715 8,053,899 4,336,715
435,148,731 350,945,748 435,148,731 350,945,748
155,801,325 138,272,355 111,857,805 92,140,223
39,103 9,364,261 39,103 39,103
(254,129,057) (368,683,312) (193,677,979) (191,718,064)
344,914,001 134,235,767 361,421,559 255,743,725

- 305,322 - -
344,914,001 134,541,089 361,421,559 255,743,725
497,152,208 540,736,663 500,081,653 577,692,296

**Following the disposal of Lafarge South Africa Holdings (Pty) Limited (LSAH) effective 31 July 2019, the financial position of LSAH has been deconsolidated
and is therefore not included in the Group statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019. The 2018 Group numbers include the financial position of

LSAH prior to the disposal.

***Subsequent to the merger of the Company with Lafarge Readymix Nig Ltd during the year, the 2019 Company numbers include the merged entity's
financial position as at 31 December, 2019. The 2018 Company numbers are those of the Company prior to the merger.

The accompanying notes and significant accounting policies on pages 52 to 116 form an integral part of these financial statements.

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30th March 2020 and were signed on its behalf by:

'] ! .-'.i_ L .a
o AR L iy oy

Mobolaji Balogun
Chairman
FRC/2013/CISN/00000004945
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Khaled Abdel Aziz El Dokani
Group Managing Director
FRC/2020/003/00000020762

Alade-Akinyemi Lolu
Chief Financial Officer

FRC/2020/001/00000020157
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51 « Consolidated and Separate Statements of Cash Flows

For the year ended

Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit/(loss) after tax

Adjustments to reconcile Profit/(loss) for the year to net

cash flows:

Profit after tax from discontinued operation
Depreciation

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment
Amortization of intangible asset

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries

Other non-cash items

Net unrealized foreign exchange loss
Finance costs

Finance income
Dividend income

Share of loss from joint venture
Income tax expense/(credit)

Minimum tax
Provisions and net movement on employee benefits

Change in net working capital

Cash flow generated from operations

Income taxes paid

Net cash flow generated from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets

Interest received

Disposal of discontinued operation, net of cash disposed
Dividend received from unlisted investments
Dividend received from subsidiaries

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Net cash flow used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid

Dividend paid to equity holders of the company
Transaction cost on rights issue

Cash paid from futures and forward contracts
Net proceed from rights issues

Proceeds from loans and borrowings
Repayment of lease liabilities

Repayment of loans and borrowings

Net cash inflow used in financing activities

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
from continuing operation

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Net bank overdraft arising from deconsolidation of
discontinued operation

Cash and cash equivalents arising from merger

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Notes

18.2.1
16.7
16
17

13
353

12(b)
12(a)
10.4

14.1
141

35.1.6
35.1

14.6

16.1
17
12 (c)
18.2.5
10.4
10.4

35.2

12 (d)
34.3
271

271
30.6
30.6
30.6

24.2

18.4

24.2

Group Company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2019 2018** 2019* 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
115,104,352 (8,801,726) 22,721,616 4,141,764
(99,586,566) - - -
29,497,370 22,288,279 27,160,431 16,369,888
389,911 925,207 389,911 219,000
672,260 494,990 518,036 2,280

- - - 3,174,874

235,915 (59,859) 273,133 (1,107,304)
938,438 6,206,982 1,156,074 3,885,150
20,176,509 37,526,676 20,950,366 34,890,220
(3,158,586) (1,719,176) (2,826,859) (1,317,064)
= (1,977) (7,934,772) -
- 65,155 - -

1,697,180 (10,706,502) 919,082 (11,550,347)
677,319 - 677,319 -
(877,418) (234,601) (494,675) (237,782)
15,639,626 (16,130,965) 13,766,030 (8,758,260)
81,306,310 29,852,483 77,275,692 39,712,419
(1,078,785) (1,887,486) = (587,307)
80,227,525 27,964,997 77,275,692 39,125,112
(22,306,615) (21,844,551) (15,777,938) (10,512,487)
(531,386) (4,220,284) (531,386) (3,206,785)
2,686,767 1,180,509 2,355,040 986,135
38,317 - 38,317 -

- 1,977 - -
- - 7,934,772 -

62,221 969,990 62,221 931,931
(20,050,696) (23,912,359) (5,918,974) (11,801,206)
(13,986,540) (37,298,875) (13,996,970) (33,794,289)
(4,220,596) (11,845,272) (4,220,596) (11,845,272)
(589,856) (1,5655,428) (589,856) (1,555,428)
(1,231,189) (5,536,300) (1,231,188) (5,536,300)
89,212,408 19,378,284 89,212,408 19,378,284
5,358,703 99,712,346 2,500,000 81,266,692
(9,435,820) - (9,429,245) -
(92,301,404) (87,925,710) (101,903,582) (88,528,977)
(27,194,294) (25,070,955) (39,659,029) (40,615,290)
32,982,535 (21,018,317) 31,697,689 (13,291,384)
(23,808,042) (1,148,616) (7,762,363) 6,179,481
16,527,094 - - -
- - 50,645 -

(1,032) (1,641,109) 1,678 (650,460)
25,700,556 (23,808,042) 23,987,649 (7,762,363)

*Subsequent to the merger of the Company with Lafarge Readymix Nig Ltd during the year, the 2019 Company numbers include the merged

entity's as at 31 December, 2019. The 2018 Company numbers are those of the Company prior to the merger.

** Following the disposal of Lafarge South Africa Holdings (Pty) Limited (LSAH) effective 31 July 2019, the financial position of LSAH has been
deconsolidated and is therefore not included in the Group statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019. The 2018 Group numbers
include the financial position of LSAH prior to the disposal. Comparative information in 2018 for the statement of cashflows has not been re-

presented.

The accompanying notes and significant accounting policies on pages 52 to 116 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Business description

Lafarge Africa PLC (Lafarge Africa) was incorporated in
Nigeria on 26 February, 1959 and commenced business
on 10 January 1961. The Company formerly known as
Lafarge Cement WAPCO Nigeria Plc changed its name
after a special resolution was passed by the
shareholders at an Annual General Meeting held on
Wednesday 9 July 2014. The change of name became
effective with the acquisition of shares in Lafarge South
Africa Holdings (Proprietary) Limited (LSAH), United
Cement Company of Nigeria Limited (UNICEM),
AshakaCem PLC (AshakaCem) and Atlas Cement
Company Limited (Atlas). The Company's corporate
head office is situated at 27B Gerrard Road, Ikoyi, Lagos
which is same as the registered office.

Lafarge Africa is in the business of manufacturing and
marketing of cement and other cementitious products
such as Ready-Mix Concrete, Aggregates, Fly-Ash etc.
On July 15, 2016, Lafarge S.A. France and Holcim
Limited, Switzerland two large global players merged to
form LafargeHolcim Group based in Zurich, Switzerland.
Consequently Lafarge Africa is now a subsidiary
company of Lafarge Holcim.

The term ‘Group’ as used in this report refers to Lafarge
Africa, its subsidiaries and investment in joint venture.
Lafarge Africa Group comprises of Lafarge Africa Plc
and its subsidiary below:

AshakaCem Limited was incorporated in Nigeria on 7
August 1974 as a private limited liability company and
was converted to a public limited liability company in
July 1990. In April 2017, the shareholders of
AshakaCem at an Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM)
passed a resolution to delist the company from the
official list of the Nigerian Stock Exchange (NSE).
Subsequent to the delisting of the company, the
shareholders of AshakaCem at a meeting ordered by the
Court held an EGM on October 23, 2017 at which a
Scheme to re-organize the issued share capital of the
company was passed. The resolution passed at the
court ordered meeting was subsequently filed and
sanctioned by the Federal High Court and the sanction
officially gazetted. At the conclusion of the scheme,
Lafarge Africa owns 100% of the issued share capital of
AshakaCem. AshakaCem's main business is the
manufacturing and marketing of cementitious materials.
Ashaka Cem has a production capacity of 1.0mtpa.
Wapsila Nigeria Limited was incorporated in Nigeria on
1 December 2014 as a wholly owned subsidiary of
Lafarge Africa Plc. Its main business is the generation
and sale of power. The Company is yet to commence
operations as at 31 December 2019.

In November 2019 through a shareholder meeting
ordered by the Federal High Court and the resolutions
sanctioned by it, Lafarge Readymix Nig Ltd. was
merged into Lafarge Africa effectively from 30th
November, 2019The Court Sanction was registered
with the CAC and published in the official Gazette of the
Federal Government of Nigeria.

Lafarge Africa Plc owns a 35% interest in Continental
Blue Investment (CBIl), a Company involved in
development, financing and operation of a cement
grinding plant in Ghana.
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The Group's subsidiaries are as stated below;

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

AshakaCem Limited AshakaCem Limited

Wapsila Nigeria Limited  [Wapsila Nigeria Limited

Lafarge Ready Mix Nigeria Limited

Lafarge South Africa Holdings (PTY) Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies

Introduction to summary of significant accounting
policies

The note provides a list of the significant accounting
policies adopted in the preparation of these
consolidated and separate financial statements to the
extent they have not already been disclosed in other
notes. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

Compliance with IFRS

These consolidated and separate financial statements of
Lafarge Africa Plc have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS")
as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) and the requirements of the Companies
and Allied Matters Act CAP C.20 Laws of the Federation
of Nigeria, 2004 and the Financial Reporting Council of
Nigeria Act, 2011. The financial statements which were
prepared on a going concern basis, were authorized for
issue by the Company's board of directors on 30th
March 2020.

The financial statements comprise the consolidated and
separate statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated and separate
statement of financial position, the consolidated and
separate of statement of changes in equity, the
consolidated and separate statement of cash flows and
the notes to the financial statements.

This is the first set of the Group’s annual financial
statements in which IFRS 16 Leases have been applied.
Changes to significant accounting policies are described
in Note 2.2.2.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the going concern assumption under
the historical cost concept except for the following
items, which are measured on an alternative basis on e
ach reporting date:

- non-derivative financial instruments — initially at fair
value and subsequently at amortized cost using
effective interest rate

- derivative financial instruments — measured at fair
value

- defined benefit pension plans - plan assets measured
at fair value

- inventory - lower of cost and net realisable value

- lease liabilities- measured at present value of future
lease payments
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The historical financial information is presented in Naira
which is the groups functional currency and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand (N'000), except
where otherwise indicated. The accounting policies are
applicable to both the Company and Group.

Use of judgements and accounting estimates

In preparing these consolidated and separate financial
statements, management has made judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
the Group/Company’s accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognised
prospectively.

Judgements

Information about judgments made in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
and separate financial statements is disclosed in Note
3.1.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation
uncertainties at 31 December 2019 that have a
significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next
financial year is disclosed in Note 3.2.

Going concern

These financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis. Management believes that the
going concern assumption is appropriate.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standards and
adopted by the Group

IFRS 16 - Leases

The Group initially applied IFRS 16 Leases from 1
January 2019. A number of other new standards are
also effective from 1 January 2019 but they do not have
a material effect on the Group's financial statements.

interpretations

The Group applied IFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach, under which the cumulative
effect of initial application is recognised in retained
earnings at 1 January 2019. Accordingly, the
comparative information presented for 2018 is not
restated — i.e. it is presented, as previously reported,
under IAS 17 and related interpretations. The details of
the changes in accounting policies are disclosed below.
Additionally, the disclosure requirements in IFRS 16
have not generally been applied to comparative
information.
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A)

B)

Definition of a lease

Previously, the Group determined at contract inception
whether an arrangement was or contained a lease
under IFRIC 4 Determining whether an arrangement
contains a Lease. The Group now assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the definition of
a lease.

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019

At inception of a contract, the group assesses whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the group uses the definition of a lease
in IFRS 16.

This policy is applied to contracts entered into, on or
after 1 January 2019.

On transition to IFRS 16, the Group elected to apply the
practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of
which transactions are leases. The Group applied IFRS
16 only to contracts that were previously identified as
leases. Contracts that were not identified as leases
under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 were not reassessed for
whether there is a lease under IFRS 16. Therefore, the
definition of a lease under IFRS 16 was applied only to
contracts entered into or changed on or after 1 January
2019.

As a lessee

As a lessee, the Group leases many assets including
property, production equipment and IT equipments. The
Group previously classified leases as operating or
finance leases based on its assessment of whether the
lease transferred significantly all of the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset
to the Group. Under IFRS 16, the Group recognises
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for most of these
leases — i.e. these leases are on-statement of financial
position.

At commencement or on modification of a contract that
contains a lease component, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component
on the basis of its relative stand-alone price. However,
for leases of property the Group has elected not to
separate non-lease components and account for the
lease and associated non-lease components as a single
lease component.

Leases classified as operating leases under IAS 17

IFRS 16 Leases which replaces IAS 17 Leases and
related interpretations was adopted for the year starting
January 1, 2019. The new standard no longer requires a
distinction between finance and operating leases for
lessees but requires lessees to recognize a lease liability
for future lease payments and a corresponding right-of
use asset. In the income statement, the expenses
comprise a depreciation charge reflecting the
consumption of economic benefits and an interest
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expense reflecting the unwinding of the lease liability
which is accounted for as a finance cost.

Previously, the Group classified property leases as
operating leases under IAS 17. On transition, for these
leases, lease liabilities were measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at
the Group’s incremental borrowing rate as at 1 January
2019.

The right-of-use assets were in general measured at the
present value of the lease liability, adjusted for any
prepaid and accrued leases before the date of initial
application. For certain leases, the right-of-use asset
was measured at its carrying amount as if the standard
had been applied since the commencement date,
discounted with the incremental borrowing rate at the
date of initial application. Lafarge Africa Plc does not
recognise right-of-use asset and record lease liability for
the payments for short-term leases, that is, leases with
a lease term assessed to be 12 months or less from the
commencement date, and for leases of low value
assets, that is, assets which fall below the capitalization
threshold for property, plant and equipment as the
impact is immaterial. These payments are included in
operating profit on a cost incurred basis and reported in
the cash flow from operating activities. Information
regarding the financial impacts of the initial application
of IFRS 16 is stated below. Since January 1, 2019, the
Group assesses at inception of a contract whether it
contains a lease under IFRS 16 and accordingly
recognizes a right-of use asset and a lease liability if it
meets the definition of a lease, with the exception of
short-term leases and leases of low value assets as
described above.

The lease liability is measured at commencement date
at the present value of the future lease payments,
discounted with the interest rate implicit in the lease or,
if not readily determinable, with the lessee’s respective
incremental borrowing rate. Future lease payments
include in-substance fixed payments, variable lease
payments depending on an index or rate and, if
assessed as reasonably certain to be exercised,
payments for purchase options, termination options and
extension options. The lease term comprises the non-
cancellable lease term together with the period covered
by extension options, if assessed as reasonably certain
to be exercised, and termination options, if assessed as
reasonably certain not to be exercised. Non-lease
components in contracts are separated from lease
components and accordingly accounted for in operating
profit on a cost incurred basis. The right-of-use asset is
recognized at the commencement date at cost, which
includes the amount of the lease liability recognized,
any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date of the lease, initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset or
restoring the asset to the condition agreed with the
lessor. Unless the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
its estimated useful life and lease term. Right-of-use
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assets are subject to the impairment requirements
under IAS 36 Impairments of Assets.

The Group determines its incremental borrowing rate by
obtaining interest rates from various external financing
sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the
terms of the lease and type of the asset leased.

The Group has tested its right-of-use assets for
impairment on the date of transition and has concluded
that there is no indication that the right-of-use assets
are impaired.

In the cash flow statement, the portion of the lease
payments reflecting the repayment of the lease liability
and interest portion is presented within financing
activities. The Group applied the new standard in
accordance with the modified retrospective approach
without restatement of the comparative period in
accordance with the transitional provisions of IFRS 16.
Leases that previously were accounted for as operating
leases under IAS 17 were recognized at the present
value of the remaining lease payments as of January 1,
2019 and discounted with the incremental borrowing
rate as of that date.

Disclosure on Impact of IFRS 16 and Transition
Note

Lease liability and Right-of-use

Lease liability and Right-of-use assets (note 1.1) explains
the accounting policy changes and the initial application
of IFRS 16 as of January 1, 2019. As part of its activities,
the Group has entered into various lease agreements as
lessee, largely for trucks and heavy mobile equipment,
for land and buildings.

Transition adjustments

The Group applied IFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach, under which the cumulative
effect of initial application is recognised in retained
earnings at 1 January 2019. Accordingly, the
comparative information presented for 2018 is not
restated — i.e. it is presented, as previously reported,
under IAS 17 and related interpretations. The details of
the changes in accounting policies are disclosed below.
Additionally, the disclosure requirements in IFRS 16
have not generally been applied to comparative
information.

Transition adjustments were recognized on initial
application of IFRS 16 as of January 1, 2019. On
transition to IFRS 16, the group recognized additional
right-of-use assets and additional lease liabilities,
recognizing the difference in retained earnings as
shown below.
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1.1 Impact on transition

Group
Statement of Financial Position 1 January 2019
N'000
Recognition of right of use asset 26,431,729
Decrease in prepaid expenses and
other current assets (6,793,951)
Total Assets 19,637,778
Current portion of Long term leases liability 5,773,148
Long term leases liability 16,803,516
Total Liabilities 22,576,664
Retained earnings (2,938,886)
Total Liabilities & Equity 19,637,778

Company

Statement of Financial Position 1 January 2019

N'000
Recognition of right of use asset 26,414,706
Decrease in prepaid expenses
and other current assets (6,787,534)

Total Assets 19,627,173

Current portion of Long term leases liability 5,763,594
Long term leases liability 16,802,465
Total Liabilities 22,566,059
Retained earnings (2,938,886)
Total Liabilities & Equity 19,627,173

The measurement of right-of-use assets at the lease
commencement date resulted in a ¥2.9 billion impact on
equity for the group and company, resulting from
depreciation and interest expense.The right-of-use
assets as of January 1, 2019 amounted to ¥26.43 billion
(Group) and N26.41billion (Company), which is
comprised of as follows:

Group Company

1Jan 1Jan

2019 2019

N'000 N'000

Land 13,442 13,442
Building 968,260 951,236
Machines 1,778,259 1,778,259
Vehicles 23,671,768 23,671,768
26,431,729 26,414,705

Additions to right-of-use assets in 2019 amounted to
N4.3 billion. As December 31, 2019, “Property, plant
and equipment” amounting to ¥19.5 billion relate to
right-of use assets. The total payments for leases in the
financial year amount to ¥12.68 billion, of which ¥3.24
billion pertained to interest paid which is presented in
cash flow from financing activities and ¥9.44 billion
presented in cash flow from financing activities in the
position “Repayment of lease liabilities” for both Group
and Company.

The lease liability as of January 1, 2019 amounted to
N22.58 billion for Group and ¥22.57 billion for Company,
of which ¥5.78 billion and ¥5.76 billion were recorded in
"Current loans and borrowings" for Group and Company
respectively, while ¥16.8 billion was recorded in "Long-
term loans and borrowings" for both Group and
Company. The weighted average incremental borrowing
rate used for the discounting as of January 1, 2019 is
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based on the Group's portfolio of leases and totals
17.8%.

Leases in which the Group is a lessor

There is no significant impact for leases in which the
Group is a lessor as at 1 January 2019.

Other standards

The following amended standards and interpretations
effective January 1 2019 do not have a material effect
on the Group'’s consolidated financial statements.

- IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Tax Treatments.

- Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
(Amendments to IFRS 9).

- Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
(Amendments to IAS 28).

- Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
(Amendments to IAS 19).

- Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017
Cycle — various standards

Standards issued but not yet effective

The following amended standards and interpretations ef

fective for financial year commencing from 1 January 2

020 are not expected to have a significant impact on the

Group’s consolidated financial statements.

i) Amendments to References to Conceptual Framework
in IFRS Standards

i) Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3)

iii) Definition of Material (Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS
8)

iv) Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments to IF
RS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

The financial statements of the consolidated
subsidiaries were used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements as at the parent company's
reporting date.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to,
or has the right to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group and unconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

Common control business combination and
organization:

The Group uses the pooling of interest method to
account for business combinations involving entities
ultimately controlled by LafargeHolcim group. A
business combination is a "common control
combination" if:

- The combining entities are ultimately controlled by the
same party both before and after the combination and

- Common control is not transitory

re-

Under a pooling of interest-type method, the Group
accounts for the combination as follows:

The assets and liabilities of the acquiree are recorded at
book value and not at fair value.
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Intangible assets and contingent liabilities are
recognised only to the extent that they were recognised
by the acquiree in accordance with applicable IFRS (in
particular IAS 38: Intangible Assets).

No goodwill is recorded. The difference between the
acquirer's cost of investment and the acquiree's equity
is recorded directly in equity.

Any non-controlling interest is measured as a
proportionate share of the book values of the related
assets and liabilities.

Any expenses of the combination are written off
immediately in the statement of profit or loss and
comprehensive income.

For business combinations, comparative amounts are
restated as if the combination had taken place at the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented.
For capital re-organisations between entities already
controlled by Lafarge Africa, transactions are effected as
though they started at the beginning of the year of
merger using the book value of the entities.
Comparatives are not restated.

Adjustments are made to achieve uniform accounting
policies.

Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except if
related to the issue of debt or equity securities.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and
expenses on transactions between Group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests (NCI)

NCI is measured at their proportionate share of the
acquiree's identifiable net assets at the date of
acquisition. Changes in the Group’s interest in a
subsidiary that does not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions.

Loss of control

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any related NCI and other components of equity.
Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is
measured at fair value when control is lost.

Joint arrangements

The Group's joint arrangements are classified as joint
venture. A joint venture is an arrangement in which the
Group and other parties have joint control, whereby the
group has rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. The classification is based on the
contractual rights and obligations of each investor,
rather than the legal structure of the joint arrangement.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method (see (v) below).

Interest in equity-accounted investees
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Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit or
loss, and the Group's share of movements in other
comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or
receivable from joint ventures are recognised as a
reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in
the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on  behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group's interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is
tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2.11.

Interests in the joint ventures are derecognised when
the Group loses joint control over the joint venture. Any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment assessment of investments in subsidiary

Interests in the equity of subsidiaries not attributable to
the parent are reported in equity as non-controlling
interest. Profits or losses attributable to non-controlling
interests are reported as profit or loss attributable to
non-controlling interests.

In the separate financial statements of Lafarge Africa Plc
(the Company) investments in subsidiaries is recognised
at cost and dividend income is recognised in other
income in the statement of profit or loss.

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that an investment
is impaired. An investment is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the investment
and has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or Group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any
unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-
group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised gains
arising from transactions with equity accounted
investees are eliminated against the investment to the
extent of the Group's interest in the investee. Unrealised
losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of an entity
that either has been disposed of or is classified as held
for sale, and represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, and is part
of a single coordinated plan to dispose a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations or is
a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as discontinued operation occurs at the
earlier of disposal or when the operation meets the
criteria to be classified as held-for-sale.

When an operation is classified as a discontinued
operation, the comparative statement of profit or loss
and OCI is represented as if the operation had been
discontinued from the start of the comparative year.

Foreign currency translations

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of the Group
are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates ('the
functional currency'). The functional currency for the
Nigerian entities is Nigerian Naira and South Africa
Rand for the South African entities. The presentation
currency of the Group is the Nigerian Naira (N).

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
respective functional currencies of the entities of the
Group by applying the exchange rate at the date of the
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency spot
rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities in a foreign currency
that are measured at historical cost are translated using
the exchange rates at the date of the transaction. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
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date when the fair value is determined. Foreign
currency differences are generally recognised in profit
or loss and presented within finance costs.

The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
items measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair
value of the item (i.e. translation differences on items
whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or
profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss,
respectively).

Foreign operations

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign
operations are translated into Naira at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their
statements of profit or loss are translated at exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The
exchange differences arising on translation for
consolidation are recognised in OCI. On disposal of a
foreign operation, the component of OCI relating to that
particular foreign operation is reclassified to profit or
loss.

The exchange differences arising on the translation are
recorded in other comprehensive income under
“Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations”. On the partial or total disposal of a foreign
entity with a loss of control, the related share in the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity is
recycled to the statement of profit or loss as part of gain
or loss on disposal. The same is applicable in a loss of
significant influence or joint control.

If the Group disposes part of its interest in a subsidiary
but retains control, then the relevant proportion of the
cumulative amount is reattributed to NCI. When the
Group disposes of only part of an associate or joint
venture while retaining significant influence or joint
control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative
amount is reclassified to profit or loss.

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) it satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good
or service to a customer (which is when the customer
obtains control of that good or service). The amount of
revenue recognised is the amount allocated to the
satisfied performance obligation. A performance
obligation may be satisfied at a point in time (typically
for promises to transfer goods to a customer) or over
time (typically for promises to transfer services to a
customer or for construction related activities).

Investment income

Investment income arising on dividends from
subsidiaries and un-listed investments are usually
classified as part of other income. Dividend income
from investments is recognised when the shareholders'
rights to receive payment have been established.

Finance income and expenses
For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost
and interest-bearing financial assets classified as fair
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value through other comprehensive income, interest
income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset. Interest income is included in finance income in
profit or loss. Foreign exchange gains and losses on
transactions are presented in net finance income or
finance expense.

Finance expense is recognised in profit or loss and
would normally include; bank charges, interest expense
calculated using the effective interest rate method,
exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs and the unwinding of the
effect of discounting provisions.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of
the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to
the amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial
assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to
initial recognition, interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-
impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts
to the gross basis.

Government grants

The Group's government grants are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with the conditions attached to them and that
the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred revenue
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the
periods in which the expenses are recognised.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate
of interest is treated as government grant, measured as
the difference between proceeds received and the fair
value of the loan based on prevailing market interest
rates. The unwinding of the discount is recognised
each year as a finance cost in the profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax (company
income tax, tertiary education tax and Nigeria Police
Trust Fund levy) and deferred tax. It is recognised in
profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a
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business combination, or items recognised directly in
equity or in other comprehensive income.
The Group had determined that interest and penalties
relating to income taxes, including uncertain tax
treatments, do not meet the definition of income taxes,
and therefore are accounted for under IAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or
receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year,
and any adjustment to tax payable or receivable in
respect of previous years.

The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the
best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or
received that reflects uncertainty related to income
taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date and is
assessed as follows:

- Company income tax is computed on Taxable profits
- Tertiary education tax is computed on assessable
profits

- Nigeria Police Trust Fund levy is computed on net
profit (i.e. profit after deducting ALL expenses and taxes
from revenue earned by the Group during the Year)

Total amount of tax payable under CITA is determined
based on the higher of two components namely
Company Income Tax (based on taxable income (or
loss) for the year); and minimum tax. Taxes based on
profit for the period are treated as income tax in line
with 1AS 12.

Minimum tax

The Group and Company are subject to the Company
Income Tax Act (CITA). Total amount of tax payable
under CITA is determined based on the higher of two
components namely Company Income Tax (based on
taxable income (or loss) for the year); and Minimum tax
(determined based on 0.5% of the gross turnover of the
Group and Company). Taxes based on taxable profit for
the period are treated as income tax in line with IAS 12;
whereas Minimum tax which is based on a gross
amount is outside the scope of IAS 12 and therefore,
are not presented as part of income tax expense in the
profit or loss.

Where the minimum tax charge is higher than the
Company Income Tax (CIT), a hybrid tax situation
exists. In this situation, the CIT is recognized in the
income tax expense line in the profit or loss and the
excess amount is presented above the income tax line
as Minimum tax.

The Group offsets the tax assets arising from
withholding tax (WHT) credits and current tax liabilities
if, and only if, the entity has a legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts, and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. The tax asset is reviewed at
each reporting date and written down to the extent that
it is no longer probable that future economic benefit
would be realised.
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Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group/Company's cash
management are included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash
flows.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not
recognised for:

— temporary differences on the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss;

— temporary differences related to investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to the
extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and
— taxable temporary differences arising on the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which they can
be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on
the reversal of relevant taxable temporary differences.

If the amount of taxable temporary differences is
insufficient to recognise a deferred tax asset in full, then
future taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of existing
temporary differences, are considered, based on the
business plans of the Group. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed
when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are
expected to be applied to temporary differences when
they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date, and reflects uncertainty
related to income taxes, if any.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the reporting date, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
only if certain criteria are met.

Impairment of non -financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its non-financial assets (other than
inventories and deferred tax assets) to determine
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whether there is any indication of impairment. If any
such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. Goodwill is tested annually for
impairment

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together
into the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing wuse that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or cash
generating units (CGUs). Goodwill arising from a
business combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of
CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGUs is the
greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to
sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash
flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset or CGUs.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount
of an asset or CGUs exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. They
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the CGUs, and then to reduce the
carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGUs on a
pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

Financial assets These assets are subsequently measured

at FVTPL at fair value. Net gains and losses,
including any interest or dividend income,
arerecognised in profitorloss.

Financial assets These assets are subsequently measured

at amortised at amortised cost using the effective

cost interest method. The amortised cost is
reduced by impairment losses. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised if any, in
profit or loss.

Debt
investments
at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured
at fair value. Interest income calculated
using the effective interest method,
foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or
loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCI. On derecognition,
gains and losses accumulated in OCl are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity
investments
at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured
at fair value. Dividends are recognised as
income in profit or loss unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment. Other
net gains and losses are recognised in OCI
and are never reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as shown in the statement of
financial position comprise cash in hand or bank,
deposit held at call with banks and time deposits which
are readily convertible to cash with original maturities of
three months or less.

other supplies (consumables) is based on the weighted
average cost.

In the case of manufactured inventories (finished goods)
and work in progress, cost includes an appropriate
share of production overhead based on normal
operating capacity.

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price of the inventories in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Slow moving and obsolete inventory items are written
off to profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The cost of raw materials, spare parts,

other supplies (consumables) is based on the weighted
average cost.

In the case of manufactured inventories (finished goods)
and work in progress, cost includes an appropriate share
of production overhead based on normal operating
capacity.

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling

price of the inventories in the ordinary course of business,

less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Slow moving and obsolete inventory items are written off
to profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Non-Derivative financial assets:
Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially
recognised when they are originated. All other financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) or financial liability is
initially measured at fair value plus or minus, for an item
not measured at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade
receivable without a significant financing component is
initially measured at the transaction price.

Classification and subsequent measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as
measured at: amortised cost; fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) - debt investment;
FVOCI - equity investment; or FVTPL. Financial assets

Lafarge Africa Plc 2019 Annual Report & Accounts

are not reclassified subsequent to their initial
recognition unless the Group changes its business
model for managing financial assets, in which case all
affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day
of the first reporting period following the change in the
business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL):

— it is held within a business model whose objective is
to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

— its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both

of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:

— it is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

— its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment's fair
value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI| as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial
assets. On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at
FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise
arise.

Financial assets These assets are subsequently measured

at FVTPL at fair value. Net gains and losses,
including any interest or dividend income,
are recognised in profit orloss.

Financial assets These assets are subsequently measured
at amortised at amortised cost using the effective
cost interest method. The amortised cost is
reduced by impairment losses. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in profit or

loss.
Debt These assets are subsequently measured
investments at fair value. Interest income calculated
at FVOCI using the effective interest method,

foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or
loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCIl. On derecognition,
gains and losses accumulated in OCl are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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Equi These assets are subsequently measured
£quity at fair value. Dividends are recognised as
Investments income in profit or loss unless the dividend
at FVOCI

clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other net gains
and losses are recognised in OCl and are
never reclassified to profit or loss.

2.14.2 Financial liabilities

Non-Derivative financial liabilities:

Classification

Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at
amortised cost. The Group has no financial liabilities in
any other category. Management determines the
classification of financial liabilities at initial recognition.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
These includes trade and other payables, loan payables

and borrowings. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities due to their short term nature while
borrowings are spilt into current and non current
liabilities. Borrowings included in non-current liabilities
are those with maturities greater than 12 months after
the reporting date.

Recognition & measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value,
net of any transaction costs. Loan payables and
borrowings are recognised on the date when they are
originated. All other financial liabilities are initially
recognised on the trade date when the entity becomes
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Subsequently, they are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

2.14.3 Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive the cash flows from these assets have
ceased to exist or the assets have been transferred and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the assets are also transferred (that is, if substantially all
the risks and rewards have not been transferred, the
Company tests control to ensure that continuing
involvement on the basis of any retained powers of
control does not prevent derecognition).

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they have
been redeemed or otherwise extinguished.

2.14.4 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legal enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in
the normal course of business and in event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or Company.

2.14.5 Impairment of financial assets

(i) Non-derivative financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses (ECLs) on financial assets measured at
amortised cost. The Group measures loss allowances at
an amount equal to the 12 month ECLs.
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The Expected credit losses for trade and other
receivables are estimated using a provision matrix
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information and
analysis, based on the Group's historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward
looking information. The Group has identified the
change in annual gross domestic product (GDP) to be
the most relevant factors and accordingly adjusts the
historical loss rates if a significant change in GDP is
expected within the next 12 months.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 90
days past due. The Group considers a financial asset to
be in default when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to
the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

_ Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that
result from default events that are possible within the 12
months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if
the expected life of the instrument is less than 12
months). The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period
over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value
of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive). ECLs are discounted at the effective interest
rate of the financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
securities at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset
is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following
observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
- a breach of contract such as a default or being more
than 90 days past due;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on
terms that the Group would not consider otherwise;
it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation; or

-~ the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of
financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at
amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

Financial
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based on the Group's historical credit loss experience
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of
both current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off when the Group has no reasonable expectations of
recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. For individual customers, the Group has a
policy of writing off the gross carrying amount when the
financial asset is 180 days past due based on historical
experience of recoveries of similar assets. For corporate
customers, the Group individually makes an assessment
with respect to the timing and amount of write-off
based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of
recovery. The Group expects no significant recovery
from the amount written off. However, financial assets
that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities in order to comply with the Group’s
procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to
hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk
exposures. Derivatives are initially measured at fair
value; any directly attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to
initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value,
and changes therein are generally recognised in profit or
loss.

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items. If significant parts of an item of property, plant
and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of
property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to
profit or loss during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Spares expected to used for more than one year and
which meets the capitalisation threshold are capitalised
and depreciated over a period of 3-10 years.

Construction  work in  progress  (Construction
expenditure) is not depreciated, it is carried at cost less
any recognised impairment losses. Cost includes
professional fees and for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the company
accounting policies. All such assets, once available for
use are capitalised within the appropriate class of
property, plant and equipment and subjected to the
applicable depreciation rate in the year they are used.

Freehold or leasehold land with indefinite extension is
not depreciated by the Group. Depreciation of property,
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plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line
method to write down the cost to the residual values
over the estimated useful lives, as follows:

Useful life
Leasehold land  Depreciated over the lease term (years)
Buildings 20-35
Production plant 20-30
Capitalised spares 3-10
Furniture 3-10
Motor vehicles 3-10
Computer equipment 4-10
Ancillary plant & machinery 10-20

The assets' residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting date.

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for
impairment  whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less costs to sell and value
in use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group require minimum levels of inventory to be
able to operate the plant, such inventories were
capitalised in line with recognition criteria in |AS
16.16(b) as costs that are necessary to bring the assets
to its working condition.

Right-of-use assets

On transition to IFRS 16 on January 1 2019, the Group
elected to apply the practical expedient to grandfather
the assessment of which transactions are leases and
recognise right of use assets which is now being
included in property, plant and equipments.

The right-of-use assets were in general measured at the
present value of the lease liability, adjusted for any
prepaid and accrued leases before the date of initial
application. For certain leases, the right-of-use asset
was measured at its carrying amount as if the standard
had been applied since the commencement date,
discounted with the incremental borrowing rate at the
date of initial application. The group does not recognise
right-of-use asset and record lease liability for the
payments for short-term leases, that is, leases with a
lease term assessed to be 12 months or less from the
commencement date, and for leases of low value
assets, that is, assets which fall below the capitalization
threshold for property, plant and equipment as the
impact is immaterial. The right of use assets is being
depreciated over the lease term on a straight line basis
and recorded as depreciation in profit or loss statement.

Major maintenance and repairs
Expenditure on major maintenance refits or repairs
comprises the cost of replacement assets or parts of
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assets and overhaul costs. Where an asset, or part of an
asset, that was separately depreciated and is now
written off is replaced, and it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group through an extended life, the expenditure is
capitalised.

Where part of the asset was not separately considered
as a component and therefore not depreciated
separately, the replacement value is used to estimate
the carrying amount of the replaced asset(s) which is

immediately  written off. All  other day-to-
maintenance and repairs costs are expensed as
incurred.

2.15.2 Inspection costs

2.16

Where an asset requires an inspection after a specified
interval then the Group recognises the cost of such
inspection in the carrying value of related asset, if its
economic benefits are for more than one accounting
period.

Intangible assets
Initial recognition and measurement

In accordance with criteria set in IAS 38, intangible
assets are recognised only if:

- they are identifiable,

- they are controlled by the entity because of past
events, and

- It is probable that the expected future economic
benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the
Group and the cost of the asset can be measured
reliably.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is their fair value at
the date of acquisition.

Subsequent recognition

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding
capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and
the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in
the period in which the expenditure is incurred.
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is
probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Group.

Amortisation methods and periods
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as
finite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or
the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered to modify the amortisation period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in
accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on
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2.17

2.18

intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in the expense category that
is consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

Derecognition

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised. An intangible asset is derecognised on
disposal, or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal.

Software

Intangible assets primarily include software costs and
are amortized using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful life of 3years which is based on
management estimation. This expense is recorded in
administrative expenses based on the function of the
underlying assets.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing cost directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
asset, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. These include interest expenses calculated using
the effective interest rate method, finance charges in
respect of finance leases and exchange differences
arising from foreign currency borrowings. Where a
range of debt instruments is used to borrow funds, or
where the financing activities are coordinated centrally,
a weighted average capitalization rate is applied.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the Group will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the reporting date taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation.

The amount of provisions are at the present value of
expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated
cash flows and are recognised as part of the cost of the
relevant asset. The cash flows are discounted at a
current pre-tax rate that reflects the current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risk
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specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the group and company, or a present
obligation that arise from past events but is not
recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
Contingent liabilities are only disclosed and not
recognised as liabilities in the statement of financial
position. If the likelihood of an outflow of resources is
remote, the possible obligation is neither a provision nor
a contingent liability and no disclosure is made.

Site restoration provisions

In accordance with the Group's policy and general
commitment to respect the environment, the Group has
a constructive obligation to restore all quarry sites. The
provision for such site restoration is recorded in
Statement of financial position and charged to finance
cost on commencement of mining activities. This
provision is recorded over the operating life of the
quarry on the basis of production levels and depletion
rates. The estimated future costs for known restoration
requirements are determined on a site-by-site basis.

Site restoration costs are provided for at the present
value of expected costs to settle the obligation using
estimated cash flows. The cash flows are discounted at
a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to
the site restoration liability. The unwinding of the
discount is expensed as incurred and recognised in the
statement of profit or loss as a finance cost. The
estimated future costs of decommissioning are
reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate.
Changes in the estimated future costs, or in the
discount rate applied, are included in profit or loss.

Exploration and evaluation

Pre-licence costs

Pre-licence costs relate to costs incurred before the
Group has obtained legal rights to explore in a specific
area. Such costs may include the acquisition
exploration data and the associated costs of analysirﬁH
that data. These costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

Exploration and evaluation expenditure

Exploration and evaluation activity involves the search
for mineral resources, the determination of technical
feasibility and the assessment of commercial viability of
an identified resource

Exploration and evaluation activity includes:
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a)

b)

c)

- Researching and analysing historical exploration data

- Gathering exploration data through geophysical
studies

- Exploratory drilling and sampling

- Determining and examining the volume and grade of
the resource

- Surveying transportation and infrastructure
requirements

- Conducting market and finance studies

Licence costs paid in connection with a right to explore

in an existing exploration area are capitalised and

amortised over the term of the permit.

Once the legal right to explore has been acquired,
exploration and evaluation expenditure is charged to
profit or loss as incurred, unless the Group concludes
that a future economic benefit is more likely than not to
be realised. These costs include directly attributable
employee remuneration, materials and fuel used,
surveying costs, drilling costs and payments made to
contractors. In evaluating whether the expenditures
meet the criteria to be capitalised, several different
sources of information are used. The information that is
used to determine the probability of future benefits
depends on the extent of exploration and evaluation
that has been performed.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

This includes wages, salaries, bonuses, paid annual
leave, sick leave and other contributions. These benefits
are expensed in the period in which the associated
services are rendered by employees of the Group. A
liability is recognised for the amount that is expected to
be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can be
estimated reliably. The Group ensures that each
employee is paid his/her annual leave entitlement at the
end of each reporting period.

Other long-term employee benefits (Long service
award)

The group provides employees with two (2) Long
Service Award Benefits. The benefits are gift items, Ex-
Gratia (expressed as a multiple of Monthly Basic Salary),
a plagque and certificate. The liability recognised in
respect of these awards is computed using actuarial
methods (discounted at present value). Any resulting
remeasurement gain/loss is recognised in full within
other income/administrative expense in the profit or
loss.

Current service cost is included as part of administrative
expense and interest cost is included as part of finance
cost in the profit or loss.

Post-employment benefit obligations

Defined contribution scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme for its employees. A defined
contribution plan is a pension plan under which the
Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. In
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a defined contribution plan, the actuarial risk falls 'in
substance' on the employee. For Nigerian entities, the
employee contributes 8% while the Group contributes
10% of the emoluments (basic, housing and transport
allowance). The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the current and
prior periods. Lafarge South Africa facilitate and
contribute to the provision of retirement benefits for all
permanent employees in accordance with South African
Pension Funds Act, 1956.

The assets of this scheme are held in separate trustee
administered funds, which are funded by contributions
from both the employee and the Group. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense as the related service is provided. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments
is available.

Defined benefit plans

Lafarge South Africa operates defined benefit plans for
certain qualifying employees. The scheme includes
post-retirement medical and retirement gratuity
benefits. Defined benefit plans define an amount of
pension benefit that an employee will receive on
retirement, dependent on, vyears of service and
compensation. The liability recognised in the statement
of financial position in respect of defined benefit
pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets.

The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by
independent actuaries using the projected unit credit
method. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality
corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency
in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms
to maturity approximating to the terms of the related
pension obligation. Where there is no deep market in
such bonds, the market rates on government bonds are
used.

The estimated cost of providing such benefits is
charged to the statement of profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the employees’ working lives.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions (remeasurements) are recognised in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise
and accumulated in retained earnings.

Current service cost is included as part of administrative
expense and interest cost is included as part of finance
cost in the profit or loss.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are expensed at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
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benefits and when the Group recognises costs for a
restructuring. If benefits are not expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months of the reporting date, then
they are discounted.

Share capital

The Company has only one class of shares; ordinary
shares. Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new ordinary shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

Income tax relating to transaction costs of an equity
transaction is accounted for in accordance with IAS 12

Dividends
Dividends are recognised as liability in the period they
are declared.

Dividends which remained unclaimed for a period
exceeding twelve (12) years from the date of declaration
and which are no longer actionable by shareholders in
accordance with Section 385 of the Companies and
Allied Matters Act CAP C.20 Laws of the Federation of
Nigeria, 2004 are written back to retained earnings.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the
profit or loss attributable to owners of the Company by
the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit or loss attributable to the owners of the Company,
by the weighted average number of shares outstanding
after adjusting for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

Prepayment for gas

The Company has a gas supply contract which requires
that on a monthly basis, an agreed sum known as the
base amount is paid by the Company for the supply of a
specified quantity of gas in future regardless of the
Company's ability to utilise the gas. Any excess of the
base amount over the value of actual gas utilised is
recognised as prepaid gas assets which is included in
other assets in the financial statements.

As the prepaid gas assets are utilised, they are
expensed and recorded in the income statement in the
period in which they are utilised.

Statement of cash flows

The statement of cash flows shows the changes in cash
and cash equivalents arising during the period from
operating activities, investing activities and financing
activities.

The cash flows from operating activities are determined
by using the indirect method. Net income is therefore
adjusted by non-cash items, such as changes from
receivables and liabilities. In addition, all income and

Financial

Statements



66

2.26

Notes to the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

expenses from cash transactions that are attributable to
investing or financing activities are eliminated for the
purpose of preparing the statement.

In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash in hand, deposit held at call
with banks, other short term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less and
bank overdrafts.

The cash flows from investing and financing activities
are determined by using the direct method.

Fair value measurement

Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the
most advantageous market to which the Group has
access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its
non-performance risk.

A number of the Group’'s accounting policies and
disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities

The Group has an established control framework with
respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes
a valuation team that has overall responsibility for
overseeing all significant fair value measurements,
including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the
Chief financial officer. The valuation team regularly
reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation
adjustments. If third party information, such as broker
quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair
values, then the valuation team assesses the evidence
obtained from the third parties to support the
conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements
of IFRS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in
which the valuations should be classified.

Significant valuation issues are reported to the Group's
audit committee.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group uses observable market data as far as
possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels
in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows.

e level T — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

e | evel 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included in
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

e Level 3 — inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset
or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value
hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is
categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair
value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is
significant to the entire measurement.
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The Group recognises transfers between levels of the
fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period
during which the change has occurred

Further information about the assumptions made in
measuring fair values is included in the following notes:
Note 4.3.1 - Financial Instrument - Fair value
measurement.

The Group only has assets measured on re-curring basis
in each reporting period. There were no non-recurring
assets measured at fair value. Further information
about the assumptions made in measuring the fair value
is included in Note 4.3.1 - Financial Instruments Fair
Value measurement.

Operating profit

Operating profit is the result generated from the
continuing principal revenue producing activities of the
Group as well as other income and expenses related to
operating activities. Operating profit excludes net
finance costs, share of profit or loss of equity accounted
investees and income taxes.

Accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make certain judgments, accounting
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported for the assets and liabilities as at the reporting
date and the amounts reported for revenues and
expenses during the year. The nature of the estimation
means that actual outcomes could differ from those
estimates. The key source of estimation uncertainty that
have a significant risk of causing material adjustments
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are
discussed below.

Judgements

Leases

The judgement on whether the Group is reasonably cer
tain to exercise extension options is disclosed in Note
2.2.2 (1).

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Site restoration provisions

Where the Group is legally, contractually or
constructively required to restore a site, the estimated
costs of site restoration are accrued for at the present
value of expected costs to settle the obligation using
estimated cash flows and are recognised as part of the
cost of the site. The unwinding of the discount is
expensed as incurred and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss as a finance cost. The estimated future
costs of site restoration are reviewed annually and
adjusted as appropriate. Changes in the estimated
future costs, or in the discount rate applied, are added
to or deducted from the cost of the site,. The estimated
future costs for known restoration requirements are
determined on a site-by-site basis and are calculated
based on the present value of future activities. See
further details in Note 31.1.
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Trade receivables

The Group assesses its trade receivables for impairment 3.2.6

at the end of each reporting period. In determining
whether an impairment should be recorded in profit or
loss, the Group makes significant assumptions in line
with the expected credit loss model of IFRS 9 in
determining the weighted average loss rate. See further
details in Note 23.

Rate for translation of foreign operations

The Group determines the rate to be used for translation
of its foreign operations based on the rate available for
immediate  delivery. Based on  management's
assessment, this is the NAFEX rate because it is the
rate that will be used for dividend remittance by the
foreign subsidiary.

Staff gratuities and Long Service awards

The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present
value of retirement benefit obligations and long service
awards are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary increases, mortality rates and changes in
inflation rates. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long-term nature, these obligations are
highly sensitive to changes in assumptions.

All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.
The parameter most subject to change is the discount
rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate,
management considers market vyield on federal
government bond in currencies consistent with the
currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation
and extrapolated as needed along the yield curve to
correspond with the expected term of the defined
benefit obligation. The rates of mortality assumed for
employees are the rates published in 67/70 ultimate
tables, published jointly by the Institute and Faculty of
Actuaries in the UK. Further information is provided in
Note 33.

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

The Group assesses its property, plant and equipment,
for possible impairment if there are events or changes in
circumstances that indicate that carrying values of the
assets may not be recoverable, or at least at every
reporting date.

The assessment for impairment entailed comparing the
carrying value of the cash generating unit with its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is based
on an estimate of the value in use of these assets. Value
in use is determined on the basis of discounted
estimated future net cash flows. During the year, the
Group recognised impairment losses in respect of
crusher in Mfamosing Plant, Exploration and evaluation
costs and items of PPE in aggregation sites in South
Africa. The value in use for all impaired items during the
period is estimated to be zero as the Group does not
expect any positive net cash flows arising from use or
abandonment. These assets cannot be sold or
transferred. See further details in Notes 16.3.
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Exploration and evaluation

The application of the Group's accounting policy for
exploration and evaluation expenditure requires
judgement to determine whether future economic
benefits are likely from either future exploitation or sale,
or whether activities have not reached a stage that
permits a reasonable assessment of the existence of
reserves.

In addition to applying judgement to determine whether
future economic benefits are likely to arise from the
Group’s exploration and evaluation assets or whether
activities have not reached a stage that permits a
reasonable assessment of the existence of reserves, the
Group has to apply a number of estimates and
assumptions.

The estimates directly impact when the Group defers
exploration and evaluation expenditure. The deferral
policy requires management to make certain estimates
and  assumptions about future events and
circumstances, particularly, whether an economically
viable extraction operation can be established. Any such
estimates and assumptions may change as new
information becomes available. If, after expenditure is
capitalised, information becomes available suggesting
that the recovery of expenditure is unlikely, the relevant
capitalised amount is written off to the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the
period when the new information becomes available.

Provisions and Contingencies

The Group makes judgements in recognition and
measurement of provisions and contingencies
especially relating to key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.
See note 2.18.

Prepayment for Gas

The Company has a gas supply contract with a vendor.
The contract requires that a base amount is paid (take-
or-pay (TOP)) by the Company regardless of its gas
utilisation. The excess of the base amount over the
value of actual gas utilised is recognised in the financial
statements as prepayment for gas. Based on the
contract, any quantities of Gas forming part of the TOP
quantity paid for by the Company and not utilised
during a contract year shall be designated as Make-up
Gas (MUG) and the Company shall be entitled to utilise
the remaining balance of the accrued Make-up Gas in
any subsequent period in the chronological order in
which it is accrued during the contract period.

The Company performs an assessment to determine
whether the prepaid gas asset is recoverable within the
contract period. This assessment contains elements
based on judgments and assumptions that are impacted
by future production volumes, forecasted growth rates
and gas utilisation levels as well as the ability of the
vendor to fulfill its obligations under the terms of the
contract. There is a risk that actual outcomes may differ
from expectations. Further details are included in Note
21.1 on Prepayment for Gas.
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3.2.9 Income and minimum tax

Significant estimates are required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made. In the current year, the Group and
Company calculated minimum tax for 31 December 2019 in line with the requirements of the Finance Act, 2019 which was
passed into law in February 2020.

The Company believes that its treatment of minimum tax is adequate based on its assessment of factors including
interpretations of tax law and prior experience with the tax authorities.

4 Financial risk management
The Group has exposure to credit, liquidity and market risk arising from financial instruments.

4.1 Financial risk factors

The Corporate Investment and Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and
international financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Group through
internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including
currency risk and interest rate risk), creditand liquidity risk.

The Group seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by aligning to parent company's policies as approved.
Compliance with policies and established controls is reviewed by the internal auditors on a continuous basis.

The Corporate Investment and Treasury function reports monthly to the executive committee and periodically to the Risk and
Ethics committee of the Board of Directors, for monitoring and implementation of mitigating policies.

The Internal Audit Department provides an independent assurance of the risk frame work. They assess compliance with
established controls and recommendations for improvement in processes are escalated to relevant management, Audit
Committee and Board of Directors.

4.1.1 Dsf ejusjtl
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss to the Group. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade
receivables) and from its investing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange
transactions and other financial instruments.

(a) Credit risk management
The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of financial
loss from defaults. This information is supplied by independent rating agencies where available, and if not available, the
Group uses other publicly available financial information and its own trading records to rate its major customers. The credit
limitis determined on an individual customer basis and as approved by the credit committee based on a assessment of each
customers credit worthiness. Bank guarantees are required from every customer thatis granted credit.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Group's
exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions
concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are
reviewed and approved by the executive committee periodically.

The average credit period on sales of goods is 30 days. No interest is charged on trade receivable by the Group.

Before accepting a new customer with no historical information on their credit worthiness, the Group ensures that bank
guarantees are in place in order to limit its credit risk exposure. The bank guarantees mitigates 90% of the credit risk
exposure.

The Group does not have a single customer with a contribution of more than 5% of the total balance of trade receivables.

The group does not require collateral in respect of trade and other receivables. The group does not have trade receivables for
which no loss allowance is required because of collateral.

The financial assets of the Group and Company are stated below: Group Company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Trade receivables - Net (Note 23) 2,219,293 13,557,082 2,751,989 2,125,426
Other receivables (Note 23) 5,973,757 7,606,912 17,700,697 9,042,279
Other financial assets (Note 19) ** 1,772,453 2,276,013 1,768,839 1,739,739
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 24) 27,103,942 12,550,697 25,391,035 10,177,776
Derivative assets - 95,573 - 95,573

37,069,445 36,086,277 47,612,560 23,180,793

Financial assets exclude prepayment, VAT receivable and withholding tax recoverable as these are non financial instruments.
** Other financial assets exclude available for sale assets.
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Trade receivables:
Trade receivables are further broken down into:

Group Company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Neither past due nor impaired (Stage 1)
0 - 30 days 780,371 12,728,402 1,408,012 1,432,180
Past due but not impaired (Stage 2)
The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:
31 - 60 days 761,170 649,203 710,604 502,421
61 - 90 days 245,384 136,046 179,473 89,753
Over 90 days 432,368 43,431 453,900 101,072
1,438,922 828,680 1,343,977 693,246
Impaired (Stage 3)
Credit impaired 275,494 764,220 264,283 149,573
Total amount exposed to credit risk (Gross) 2,494,787 14,321,302 3,016,272 2,274,999
Impairment allowance (Note 23.3) (275,494) (764,220) (264,284) (149,573)
Total amount exposed to credit risk (Net) 2,219,293 13,557,082 2,751,988 2,125,426

Management believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 30 days are still collectible in full, based on historical payment
behaviour and extensive analysis of customer credit risk, including underlying customers’ credit ratings as available.

Amounts due from related parties are considered recoverable by management as the Group has not suffered significant impairment losses in the past on
related party receivables.

Impairment of trade receivables

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date and the calculation is based on actual incurred historical data. Individual receivables which are
known to be uncollectible are written off by reducing the carrying amount directly. The other receivables are assessed collectively to determine whether
there is objective evidence that an impairment has been incurred but not yet identified. For these receivables the estimated impairment losses are
recognised in a separate provision for impairment. The Group considers that there is evidence of impairment if any of the following indicators are present:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor
- probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and
- default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue).

Receivables for which an impairment provision was recognised are written off against the provision when there is no expectation of recovering additional
cash.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

Reconciliation of changes in the allowance for credit losses impairment account is disclosed in Note 23.3.

Expected credit loss assessment for corporate customers as at 31 December 2019

The Group allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on data that is determined to be predictive of the risk of loss (including but not limited to
external ratings, audited financial statements, management accounts and cash flow projections and available press information about customers) and
applying experienced credit judgement. Credit risk grades are defined using qualitative and quantitative factors that are indicative of the risk of default
and are aligned to external credit rating definitions from agencies.

Exposures within each credit risk grade are segmented by geographic region and industry classification and an ECL rate is calculated for each segment
based on delinquency status and actual credit loss experience over the past two years. These rates are multiplied by scalar factors to reflect differences
between economic conditions during the period over which the historical data has been collected, current conditions and the Group's view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

The Group holds bank guarantees to cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets.

(c ) Credit quality

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if available) or to
historical information about counterparty default rates. The Group mitigates its credit risk of its bank balance and derivative financial assets by selecting
and transacting with reputable banks with good credit ratings and a history of strong financial performance.

Lafarge Africa Plc 2019 Annual Report & Accounts

=
o
<
<
=
ic

Statements




70 Notes to the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Bank ratings are based on Fitch national long term rating (2019). The credit ratings of the banks with the bank balances are shown below.

Group Company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2019 2018 2019 2018
Cash at bank N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
AAA 1,699,833 558,986 1,633,201 537,553
AA+ - 5,336 - -
AA- - 63,241 - -
A+ - 8,347 - 8,347
B+ 138,605 333,022 135,494
B 20,630,414 8,007,595 19,143,125 7,706,995
B- - 130,748 - 78,710
F1 1,976,911 127,889 1,922,558 96,885
F3 - 28,211 - 28,211
24,445,763 9,263,375 22,834,378 8,456,701
Restricted cash at bank 1,375,834 1,077,794 1,375,834 1,077,794
Others** 1,282,345 2,209,528 1,180,823 643,281
Total cash and cash equivalents 27,103,942 12,550,697 25,391,035 10,177,776

**Qthers include cash in hand which have not been assessed for credit risk.

AAA' ratings denote the lowest expectation of credit risk. They are assigned only in cases of exceptionally strong capacity for payment of financial
commitments. This capacity is highly unlikely to be adversely affected by foreseeable events.

'AA' ratings denote expectations of very low credit risk. They indicate very strong capacity for payment of financial commitments. This capacity is not
significantly vulnerable to foreseeable events.

'A' ratings denote expectations of low credit risk. The capacity for payment of financial commitments is considered strong. This capacity may,
nevertheless, be more vulnerable to adverse business or economic conditions than is the case for higher ratings.

'BBB' ratings indicate that expectations of credit risk are currently low. The capacity for payment of financial commitments is considered adequate, but
adverse business or economic conditions are more likely to impair this capacity.

‘BB’ ratings indicate an elevated vulnerability to credit risk, particularly in the event of adverse changes in business or economic conditions over time;
however, business or financial alternatives may be available to allow financial commitments to be met.

'B' ratings indicate that material credit risk is present.

uon

'The modifiers “+" or “-" may be appended to a rating to denote relative status within major rating categories.

Trade receivables Group Company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000

Counterparties without external rating

Group 1 - New customers < 1 year 283,601 1,611,707 176,801 727,865
Group 2 - Existing customer with no default 229,148 10,184,281 974,378 521,989
Group 3 - Existing customer with default 267,622 932,414 256,833 182,326
780,371 12,728,402 1,408,012 1,432,180

4.1.2 Liquidity risk

(a)

(b)

Management of liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset.

The Group and Company manage liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The Group maintains the following lines of credit:
- N22.4billion overdraft facility that is unsecured. Interest payable ranges from 11% - 15%.
- N44.5billion revolving credit facility that is unsecured and can be drawn to meet short-term financing needs. Interest payable is 15%.

Maturities of financial liabilities

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Group’s short-, medium- and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group and Company
manage liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
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The Group maintains the following lines of credit:

- N22.4billion overdraft facility that is unsecured. Interest payable ranges from 11% - 15%.
- N44.5billion revolving credit facility that is unsecured and can be drawn to meet short-term financing needs. Interest payable is 15%.

®
I

Group
Carrying Contractual
31 December 2019 amount cash flows 0 - 12 months 1-3 years Above 3 years
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Non derivative financial instruments _ 2
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 64,185,115 81,583,307 22,026,857 55,610,893 3,945,557 § E
Trade and other payables** 46,709,084 46,709,084 46,709,084 - - L“E:ﬁ
Bank overdraft 27,552 27,552 27,552 - -
110,921,751 128,319,943 68,763,493 55,610,893 3,945,557 5
Carrying Contractual
31 December 2018 amount cash flows 0 - 12 months 1-3 years Above 3 years
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Non derivative financial instruments
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 266,207,059 271,796,196 108,570,315 41,009,771 122,216,110
Trade and other payables** 73,918,278 73,918,278 73,918,278 - -
Bank overdraft 35,280,945 35,280,945 35,280,945 - -
Derivative financial instruments
Derivative liability 244,176 247,805 247,805 - -
375,650,458 381,243,224 218,017,343 41,009,771 122,216,110
Company
Carrying Contractual
31 December 2019 amount cash flows 0 - 12 months 1-3 years Above 3 years
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Non derivative financial instruments
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 55,984,112 71,436,334 18,862,919 51,639,929 933,485
Trade and other payables** 50,951,185 50,951,185 50,951,185 - -
Bank overdraft 27,552 27,552 27,552 - -
106,962,849 122,415,071 69,841,656 51,639,929 933,485
Carrying Contractual
31 December 2018 amount cash flows 0 - 12 months 1-3 years Above 3 years
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Non derivative financial instruments
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 250,077,462 254,633,695 97,974,390 38,002,862 118,656,443
Trade and other payables** 44,254,829 44,254,829 44,254,829 - -
Bank overdraft 16,862,345 16,862,345 16,862,345 - -
Derivative financial instruments
Derivative liability 244,176 247,805 247,805 - -
311,438,812 315,998,674 159,339,369 38,002,862 118,656,443

The amounts disclosed in the tables above are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of the liabilities. Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

** Trade and other payables exclude VAT payable, advance rent received, customer deposits and withholding tax payable as these are non financial
instruments.

4.1.3 Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. The Group is exposed to interest rate risk and foreign exchange rate risk.

(I) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to the changes in market interest rates. The
Group's main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the group to cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group is not exposed to fair value interest rate risk because its fixed interest rate borrowings are not carried at fair value. Interest rate risk is
managed by the Group by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating borrowings. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for borrowings at the end of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming
the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. 200 basis points increase or decrease are
used when reporting LIBOR and NIBOR risk respectively to key management personnel and these represent management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.
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Floating interest rate (variable rate):
The financial liabilities with floating interest rates are shown below;

Group Company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Foreign denominated variable rates
Related party loan (Note 30.4) - 140,411,911 - 129,996,764
- 140,411,911 - 129,996,764
Fixed rates for financial liabilities :
The financial liabilities with fixed interest rates are shown below;
Foreign denominated fixed rates
Lafarge Gypsum S. A Pty Ltd - 315,008 - -
- 315,008 - -
Naira denominated fixed rates
Power Fund (7%, 9%) 12,373,343 11,345,910 4,181,322 5,946,467
Bond (14.25%/14.75%) 33,849,197 60,249,338 33,849,198 60,249,338
Lease liabilities 17,358,549 - 17,349,567 -
Short term bank loans (16.53% - 17.01% p.a) 604,026 53,884,892 604,025 53,884,893
Bank overdrafts 27,552 35,280,945 27,552 16,862,345
64,212,667 160,761,085 56,011,664 136,943,043
Total 64,212,667 301,488,004 56,011,664 266,939,807
Floating interest rate (variable rate):
The financial assets with floating interest rates are shown below;
Group Company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Foreign denominated variable rates
Loan to CBI Ghana (12 months LIBOR +11%) 1,762,507 1,739,739 1,762,507 1,739,739
1,762,507 1,739,739 1,762,507 1,739,739

Sensitivity of interest rates for financial liabilities

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk on related party loans and bank overdrafts. The table below details the impact on the post- tax profit

of the Group and the Company (no impact on equity).

Group Company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Foreign denominated variable rates
Interest rates- decrease by 200 basis point - (2,808,238) ° (2,599,935)
Interest rates- Increase by 200 basis point - 2,808,238 - 2,599,935

Sensitivity of interest rates for financial assets

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk on related party loans. The table below details the impact on the post- tax profit of the Group and

the Company (no impact on equity).

Group Company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Foreign denominated variable rates
Interest rates- decrease by 200 basis point (35,250) (34,795) (35,250) (34,795)
Interest rates- Increase by 200 basis point 35,250 34,795 35,250 34,795

(ii) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to the changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Group is exposed to risks resulting from fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. A change in the value of any such foreign currency
could have an effect on the Group's cash flow and future profits. The Group is exposed to exchange rate risk as a result of cash balances denominated in
a currency other than the Naira. The Group is mainly exposed to USD.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 21%, increase and decrease in Naira against US dollar, Euro, Great Britain's Pound (GBP), Swiss
Franc (CHF) and South Africa Rand (ZAR). Management believes that a 21% movement in either direction is reasonably possible at the 31 December
2019. The sensitivity analyses below include outstanding US dollar denominated assets and liabilities. A positive number indicates an increase in profit
where Naira strengthens by 21% against the US dollar. For a 21% weakening of Naira against the US dollar there would be an equal and opposite impact
on profit, and the balances below would be negative.
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Below are the foreign denominated currencies the Group is exposed to;

31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
Average rates Closing rates Average rates Closing rates .
US Dollars 361.65 363.92 347.07 358.6
Euros 404.83 407.81 409.93 410.24 &
GBP (Great Britain Pounds) 461.73 478.08 463.36 456.61 -
ZAR 25.05 25.85 26.38 24.89
CHF 363.97 375153 354.84 364.12 £
Foreign currency denominated balances § é
Group Company =
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec -
2019 2018 2019 2018 B
000 000 000 000
US Dollar
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6,459 3,904 6,051 3,619
Loan receivables 5,759 4,994 5,759 4,994
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - (322,493) (322,493)
Trade and other payables (5,768) (3,103) (1,634) (2,785)
Net financial (liabilities)/asset 6,450 (316,698) 10,176 (316,665)
Euro
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 40 116 36 47
Other receivables - - - -
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - - -
Trade and other payables (1,889) (3,341) (1,274) (2,921)
Net financial (liabilities)/asset (1,849) (3,225) (1,238) (2,874)
GBP
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4 25 1 1
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (75) (551) (21) (155)
Net financial (liabilities)/asset (71) (526) (20) (154)
CHF
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables - (250) - (250)
= (250) - (250)
ZAR
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (995) (797) - (257)
(995) (797) - (257)
CNY
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (1,338) = (474) -
(1,338) = (474) -

Sensitivity analysis for foreign exchange risk

The sensitivity analysis for currency rate risk shows how changes in the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market rates at the reporting date.

The sensitivity of the Group's earnings to fluctuations in USD, Euro, GBP, CHF and ZAR exchange rates is reflected by varying the exchange rates as
shown below:
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Group Company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
US Dollar
Increase in exchange rate by 21% 14,254 (699,903) 22,490 (699,830)
Decrease in exchange rate by 21% (14,254) 699,903 (22,490) 699,830
Euro
Increase in exchange rate by 21% (4,086) (7,127) (2,736) (6,352)
Decrease in exchange rate by 21% 4,086 7,127 2,736 6,352
GBP
Increase in exchange rate by 21% (157) (1,162) (44) (340)
Decrease in exchange rate by 21% 157 1,162 44 340
CHF
Increase in exchange rate by 21% - (553) - (553)
Decrease in exchange rate by 21% - 553 - 553
ZAR
Increase in exchange rate by 21% (2,200) (1,761) - (568)
Decrease in exchange rate by 21% 2,200 1,761 - 568

4.2 Capital management
4.2.1 Risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total

borrowings (including ‘current and non-current borrowings' as shown in the statement of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital
is calculated as the sum of all equity components on the statement of financial position plus net debt.

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 were as follows:

Group Company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Total borrowings 64,212,667 301,488,004 60,594,077 266,939,807
Less: Cash and cash equivalents excluding bank overdrafts 27,103,942 12,550,697 25,391,035 10,177,776
Net debt 37,108,725 288,937,307 35,203,042 256,762,031
Total equity 344,914,001 134,541,089 361,421,559 255,743,725
Total capital 382,022,726 423,478,396 396,624,601 512,505,756
Gearing ratio 0.11 2.15 0.10 1.00

4.3 Fair value

IFRS 13 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or unobservable.
Observable input reflect market data obtained from independent sources; unobservable inputs reflect the group's market assumptions.

At the reporting date, the directors believe that the book value of the financial assets and liabilities except borrowings are not materially different from
the fair value.

All financial assets and liabilities are classified as level 2 except for non-deliverable futures which is classified as level 1. The book value of the trade and
other receivables, financial assets, trade and other payables is expected to approximate the fair value of these financial instruments due to their short
term maturities. There were no transfers between levels during the reporting period.
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Group
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000

Fair value Book Value Fair value Book Value
Financial Assets
Financial Assets classified at ammortised cost
Trade and other receivables 8,193,050 8,193,050 21,163,994 21,163,994
Financial assets (excluding non-deliverable futures) 1,772,453 1,772,453 2,276,013 2,276,013
Cash and cash equivalents 27,103,942 27,103,942 12,550,697 12,550,697
Financial Assets classified at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative assets = - 95,573 95,573
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities classified as amortised cost
Trade and other payables** 46,709,084 46,709,084 73,918,278 73,918,278
Bank overdraft 27,552 27,552 35,280,945 35,280,945
Borrowings 64,185,115 64,185,115 266,207,059 266,207,059
Financial liabilities classified at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative liability S - 244,176 244,176

Company
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000

Fair value Book Value Fair value Book Value
Financial Asset
Financial Assets classified at ammortised cost
Trade and other receivables 20,452,686 20,452,686 11,167,705 11,167,705
Financial assets 1,768,839 1,768,839 1,739,739 1,739,739
Cash and cash equivalents 25,391,035 25,391,035 10,177,776 10,177,776
Financial Assets classified at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative assets = - 95,573 95,573
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities classified at amortised cost
**Trade and other payables 50,951,185 50,951,185 44,254,829 44,254,829
Bank overdraft 27,552 27,552 16,862,345 16,862,345
Borrowings 60,566,525 60,566,525 250,077,462 250,077,462
Financial liabilities classified at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative liability = - 244,176 244,176

** Trade and other payables exclude VAT payable, advance rent received, customer deposits and withholding tax payable as these are non financial
instruments.

Fair value measurement

Group

Financial Instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (quoted equity) is based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Company is the bid price at the reporting date. These instruments are included in level 1.
There were no transfers between levels during the year.

The fair value of future and forward exchange contracts is determined using quoted forward exchange rates at the reporting date and present value
calculations based on high credit quality yield curves in the respective currencies.

Financial Instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (loans and borrowings) is determined by using discounted cash flow
valuation techniques. This valuation technique maximize the use of observable market data by using the market related interest rate for discounting the
contractual cash flows. There are no significant unobservable inputs. There were no transfers between levels during the year. The basis of measurement

has remained the same between current and prior years.

4.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

There are no offsetting arrangements. Financial assets and liabilities are settled and disclosed on a gross basis.
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5 Segment Reporting

The Board of Directors (BOD) is the chief operating decision maker who reviews the internal reporting to assess performance and allocate resources.
The Directors have identified operating segments based on these internal reports. The BOD considers business from the range of product perspective.

The BOD assesses the performance of the operating segments based on a measure of total assets and liabilities, revenue, gross profit and other directly
attributable expenses. These operating segments are:

Established for the business of cement production . This segment typically has three major
Cement business operations within Nigeria which are the South-West operations, the Southern
Nigeria operation and the Northern Nigeria operation.

Established for the business of concrete and aggregates. Lafarge Ready-mix Nigeria
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Lafarge Africa Plc is established basically for these
operations. The operations are currently in Lagos, Abuja, Port-Harcourt, and Ewekoro and is
expected to spread to other states of Nigeria in the near future.

Aggregates and concrete

Established for the business of admixtures and other solutions. Admixtures are chemical

Admixtures and other products e .
compounds added to concrete to modify its properties.

The segments identified meet the recognition criteria as a reportable segment under IFRS 8.

The amounts provided to the board of directors with respect to total income and expense are measured in a manner consistent with that of the financial
statements. These assets are allocated based on the use of the segment and the physical location of the asset.

*Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not assessed for the purpose of segment reporting.
No revenue in excess of 10% was generated from a single customer.

5.1 Segment Information by Product line

External revenue Gross revenue
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Cement 207,239,947 210,507,141 210,372,431 213,678,481
Aggregates and concrete 5,759,119 7,305,995 5,759,119 7,305,995
Total 212,999,066 217,813,136 216,131,550 220,984,476

Revenue from internal customers of %3.13 billion (2018:%3.17 billion) has been eliminated on consolidation.

Aggregate and
Cement others Total
N'000 N'000 N'000
Revenue 207,239,947 5,759,119 212,999,066
Cost of sales (153,498,964) (4,186,655) (157,685,619)
Other Income 2,243,594 108,107 2,351,701
Other expenses** (22,437,143) (317,797) (22,754,940)
Operating profit 33,547,434 1,362,774 34,910,208
**This comprises selling and marketing expenses, administrative expenses and other operating expenses
Aggregate and
Cement others Total
Statement of financial position by segment: N'000 N'000 N'000
Property, plant & equipments 367,635,534 2,166,014 369,801,548
Other non current assets 50,804,181 1,500,758 52,304,939
Current assets 71,281,362 3,764,359 75,045,721
Total assets 489,721,077 7,431,131 497,152,208
Non current liabilities (67,660,930) (165,507) (67,826,437)
Current liabilities (74,914,512) (9,497,261) (84,411,770)
Net assets/(liabilities) 347,145,635 (2,231,637) 344,914,001
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Group Company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
6 Revenue

Sale of goods 212,999,066 217,813,136 188,407,004 187,043,475

The following is an analysis of revenue by product:
Cement 207,239,947 210,507,141 182,647,885 187,043,475
Aggregate and concrete 5,759,119 7,305,995 5,759,119 -

212,999,066 217,813,136 188,407,004 187,043,475

Group Company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec

2019 2018 2019 2018

N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000

7 Cost of sales by nature

Variable costs (Note 7.1) 91,422,217 96,440,154 76,577,261 81,399,223
Production costs (Note 7.2) 24,450,963 20,786,678 18,475,108 13,393,034
Maintenance costs 8,438,647 8,756,223 7,638,179 6,917,056
Distribution costs 4,378,955 5,475,495 3,611,246 4,766,457
Depreciation (Note 16.7) 27,932,666 18,617,655 25,801,214 16,265,935
Impairment of property, plant and equipment (Note 16) 389,911 645,236 389,911 219,000
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 33,409 33,010 14,608 2,280
Prepaid medical - 46,584 - 46,584

157,046,768 150,701,035 132,507,527 123,009,569

7.1 Variable costs

Distribution variable cost 37,516,849 40,963,380 32,566,857 36,567,944
Fuel and power 31,763,090 31,289,595 23,477,517 24,019,735
Raw materials and consumables 22,142,278 24,187,179 20,532,887 20,811,544

91,422,217 96,440,154 76,577,261 81,399,223

7.2 Production costs

Included in the production costs are personnel expenses, by-products costs, inventory write-offs and electrical energy expenses.

Group Company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
8 Selling and marketing expenses
Advertising expenses 2,021,950 1,146,586 2,021,950 1,146,586
Campaign and innovation expenses 171,260 2,247 171,260 2,247
Marketing staff salaries and other related costs 2,902,390 2,749,094 2,884,913 2,742,472
5,095,600 3,897,927 5,078,123 3,891,305
Group Company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
9 Administrative expenses by nature
Salaries and other staff related costs 5,382,669 5,684,845 5,409,582 5,615,380
Directors' costs 35,476 176,004 34,882 170,344
AGM Costs 93,617 105,597 93,517 105,597
Audit fees 127,500 127,500 107,500 98,500
Community relation 197,700 99,672 197,602 82,086
Fuel 42,724 38,800 42,515 38,800
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Group Company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000

Administrative expenses by nature cont'd
Insurance 6,750 331,231 6,750 303,701
Advance payment of taxes and levies (Note 9.1) 1,999,062 2,166,775 1,999,062 2,166,775
Other supplies & spare parts 156,873 1,000,207 156,411 1,000,007
Rent 62,525 836,195 62,525 97,505
Consultancy fees 847,909 3,070,194 847,804 3,070,784
Repair and maintenance 17,940 736,773 17,940 736,565
Security Cost 187,794 414,737 187,794 388,331
Training 100,059 36,396 100,059 36,396
Travel 591,046 875,683 581,062 875,683
Vehicle leasing = 275,177 = 275,177
Office and general expenses (Note 9.2) 1,659,500 2,510,900 1,644,634 2,458,575
Depreciation (Note 16.7) 1,564,704 88,818 1,369,217 103,953
Amortisation of intangible assets 638,851 - 503,428 -
Technical service fees (Note 9.4) 3,847,193 6,302,311 3,675,145 5,816,679
17,559,792 24,877,815 16,927,429 23,440,838

Advance payment of taxes and levies

In 2017, the Company entered into an agreement with a state government to advance an amount not exceeding #2.8 billion annually as
payments for all taxes, dues and levies payable in the state. The agreement is for a three-year period which commenced in April 2017, which
effectively exempts the Company from all state and local government taxes, dues and levies during the agreed period. In line with the
agreement, the Company made an advance payment of 2.8 billion, of which %2 billion relates to the current financial year.&0.8million
advance payment brought forward in the year has also been amortised in the income statement in current year. These amounts have been
included in the consolidated and separate statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as Cost of sales 0.8 billion (under
Note 7.1 - Distribution variable cost) and Administrative expenses &2 billion (Under Note 9 — Administrative expenses).

Office and general expenses
Office and general expenses mainly relate to office expenses and stationary, legal cost, fees, subscriptions, other personnel costs, IT costs,
canteen, cleaning, distribution and licenses.

Non-audit fees paid to KPMG Professional Services
The total amount of non-audit fees paid to KPMG Professional Services is %22.8million. This is in respect of tax services rendered during the
year.

Technical service fees

Lafarge Africa Plc is in the process of finalising a technical service agreement with Holcim Technology Limited, a related party which relates
to Industrial Franchise. This agreement is awaiting registeration with the National Office for Technology Acquisition and Promotion (NOTAP)
in Nigeria and the provison is computed as 5% of Earnings before interest and tax (EBITDA) for both group and company subject to
maximum of 2% of net sales. The total technical service fees payable at year end for the Group and Company amounted to &5.7 billion and
5.4 billion (2018: &13.6 billion and %9.04 billion) respectively.

Group Company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Other income
Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment (Note 10.1) 54,689 936,326 54,689 926,622
Government grants (Note 10.2) 253,958 110,732 110,732 110,732
Scrap and other miscellaneous income (Note
10.3) 2,043,054 319,006 1,940,982 255,975
Write back of impairment of other receivables - 15,944 - -
Investment income (Note 10.4) - - 7,934,772 -
2,351,701 1,382,008 10,041,175 1,293,329

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
This represents gain on disposal of the Company’s motor vehicles and land held by the Company.

Government grants
Government grants arise from below-market interest rate government loan (CBN/BOI Intervention Fund loan) received in July 2011 and in
March 2018. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached to these grants.

Lafarge Africa Plc 2019 Annual Report & Accounts



79 Notes to the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

10.3 Scrap and other miscellaneous income

This comprises of the total income earned on miscellaneous activities not related to cementitious products including income from sale of

scrap and product shortage recoveries (haulers).

10.4 Investment income

Dividends received from subsidiaries (Note

10.4.1)

10.4.1 Dividend received from subsidiaries

This represents dividend received from AshakaCem (2018 Nil)

11 Other operating expenses

Impairment of loan receiveble and other receivable (11.1)

Write off of assets

Group Company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
2 - 7,934,772 -
- - 7,934,772 -
Group Company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
333,498 159,217 333,498 159,217
430,763 956,511 356,348 304,398
764,261 1,115,728 689,846 463,615

11.1 The impairment loss recognised in current year relates to the expected credit loss on the loan receivable due from CBI Ghana. In 2018, the
Group and Company recognised an impairment loss on other receivables due from third parties.

11.2 Impairment loss on trade receivables

Impairment (reversal)/loss on trade and other receivables

12 Finance income and costs

a) Interest income under the effective interest method and

other finance income:
Interest income on current accounts
Other finance income

Interest income from Short term fixed deposits

Interest on loan receivable
Foreign exchange gain (net)

b) Finance costs:
Interest on bank overdraft
Interest on borrowings (Note 30.6)

Unwinding of discount on provisions (Note 31.1)

Interest cost on employee's long service
award (Note 33.1)

Interest cost on staff gratuities (Note 33.2)
Bank charges

Finance costs per statement of cash flows

Foreign exchange loss (net)
Finance costs

Net finance costs recognised in the profit or

loss

Group Company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
(25,862) 74,326 (34,180) 44,835
(25,862) 74,326 (34,180) 44,835
Group Company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
1,070,952 798,754 789,010 798,754
111,460 186,191 110,801 186,191
- 1,190 - 1,190
254,163 538,667 271,497 330,929
1,722,011 - 1,655,551 -
3,158,686 1,524,802 2,826,859 1,317,064
(740,443) (2,816,080) (740,443) (3,478,896)
(18,125,050) (27,695,026) (18,981,016) (28,673,150)
(148,084) (399,297) (88,485) (250,272)
(201,016) (236,308) (168,076) (161,322)
(63,319) (76,512) (63,319) (76,512)
(898,597) (2,320,239) (909,027) (2,250,068)
(20,176,509) (33,543,462) (20,950,366)  (34,890,220)
- (8,019,421) - (8,147,195)
(20,176,509) (41,562,883) (20,950,366) (43,037,415)
(17,017,923) (40,038,081) (18,123,507) (41,720,351)

Bank charges represent Letter of credit charges, Over-the-counter (OTC) charges for non-deliverable futures and other bank account

operational charges
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Group Company

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
c) Interest received per statement of cash flows 2019 2018 2019 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Finance income per profit or loss 3,158,586 1,524,802 2,826,859 1,317,064
Interest receivable (471,819) (538,667) (471,819) (330,929)
Interest received per statement of cash flows 2,686,767 986,135 2,355,040 986,135

d) Interest paid per statement of cash flows
Finance costs per profit or loss (20,176,509) (41,562,883) (20,950,366) (43,037,415)
Interest payable/(receivable) /offset (2,621,928) (832,488) (1,765,962) 607,825
Interest paid- non cash effective 8,399,478 - 8,399,478 -
Non-cash interest charged to profit or loss 412,419 712,117 319,880 488,106
Foreign exchange loss (net) = 8,019,421 - 8,147,195
Interest paid per statement of cash flows (13,986,540) (33,663,833) (13,996,970) (33,794,289)

13 Impairment loss on investments in subsidiaries

Impairment loss on investments in subsidiaries relate to impairment charge of #&3.2 billion on the Company's investment in Lafarge South
Africa Holdings Limited in 2018. No impairment loss has been recorded in the group. See note 18.2.7 for more details

14 Income tax expense/(credit)
This note provides an analysis of the Group and Company's income tax expense. It shows what amounts are recognised directly in equity
and how the tax expense is affected by non-assessable and non-deductible items. It also explains significant estimates made, if any, in
relation to the Group and Company's tax position.

Group Company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
14.1 Minimum tax charge recognised in profit or loss 677,319 - 677,319 -
14.1 Income tax expense/(credit) recognised in profit or loss
Group Company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Current taxation

Company income tax 749,764 841,754 - -
Education tax 424,928 113,278 350,577 -
Capital gains tax - 84,876 - 84,876
Total current tax expense 1,174,692 1,039,908 350,577 84,876

Deferred taxation
Deferred income tax expense/(credit) to profit 522,488 (10,646,707) 568,505 (11,635,223)

or loss (Note 14.7)
Income tax expense/(credit) 1,697,180 (9,606,799) 919,082 (11,550,347)
Income tax expense/(credit) 1,697,180 (9,606,799) 919,082 (11,550,347)

The Company's operating results when adjusted for tax purposes, resulted in a nil taxable income. Accordingly, no provision has been made
for Company Income tax.
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Corpo

14.2 Reconciliation of effective tax to statutory tax 3

The tax on the Company's loss before income tax differs from the amount that would arise using the statutory income tax rate as follows:

@
D

Group Company :

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 3
2019 2018 2019 2018

N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 P

Profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations 17,892,285 (1,509,768) 24,318,017 (7,408,683) £k
Tax calculated at statutory tax rate of 30% 5,367,686 (452,930) 7,295,405 (2,222,575)
Impact of disallowable expenses for tax 495 370 817,943 451,474 1,393,836

Impact of non taxable income 581,105 (658,694) (1,526,350) (575,209) 55
Changes in estimate relating to prior year (1,176,126) (214,750) (1,656,242) (17,700)
Impact of education tax rule 424,928 113,278 350,577 -
Impact of unrecognised tax losses - 917,053 = -
Impact of Minimum Tax 677,319 - 677,319 -
Effect of pioneer status (3,973,844) (6,245,575) (3,973,844) (6,245,575)
Impact of business combination (699,258) - (699,258) -
- 84,876 - 84,876

Impact of capital gains tax

Recognition of previously unrecognised deductible temporary - (3,968,000) - (3,968,000)
differences

Income tax expense/(credit) recognised in profit or loss 1,697,180 (9,606,799) 919,081 (11,550,347)
Effective tax rate 9% 636% 4% 156%

14.3 Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Group Company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Deferred tax arising on:
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 30,659 (54,401) 30,659 (17,700)
14.4 Current tax assets
Group Company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
At 1 January 658,291 917,797 = -
Arising from deconsolidation of discontinued operation (658,291) - = -
Charge for the year
Company income tax - (309,334) ® -
Charge for the year - (309,334) = -
Utilised during the year - 83,836 = -
Exchange rate difference - (34,008) = -
At 31 December - 658,291 - -
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14.5 Current tax liabilities

Lafarge Africa Plc 2019 Annual Report & Accounts

Group Company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Balance at 1 January 1,156,231 3,251,525 201,199 1,544,949
Charge for the year:
Company income tax 749,764 841,754 - -
Education tax 424,928 113,278 350,577 -
Capital gains tax - 84,876 - 84,876
Minimum tax 677,319 - 677,319 -
Reclassification to non-income tax liabilities - (1,287,527) = (841,319)
3,008,242 3,003,906 1,229,095 788,506
Payment during the year (1,078,785) (1,803,650) = (587,307)
Withholding tax utilised = (44,025) = -
At 31 December 1,929,457 1,156,231 1,229,095 201,199
14.6 In the statement of cash flows, Income taxes paid comprise:
Group Company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Current income tax asset paid (Note 14.4) - (83,836) - -
Current income tax liabilities paid (Note 14.5) (1,078,785) (1,803,650) - (587,307)
Total current income taxes paid (1,078,785) (1,887,486) - (587,307)
14.7 Deferred taxation
The analysis of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) is as follows:
Group Company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Deferred tax assets 27,994,154 28,720,032 27,994,154 27,950,907
Deferred tax liabilities (9,966,699) (10,200,112) - -
Deferred tax assets net 18,027,455 18,519,920 27,994,154 27,950,907
Group
Deferred tax liabilities/(assets): At 1 January Derecognition of (Credit)/ (Credit)/ At 31
2019 discontinued charge to P/L charge to OCI December
operation 2019
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Property, plant and equipment 18,967,634 (9,965,785) (5,307,371) (24) 3,694,454
Provisions and other liabilities (9,324,378) 2,449 551 150,339 311,424 (6,413,064)
Unutilised tax losses (23,576,537) 7,244,981 5,197,119 (4,480) (11,138,917)
Employment benefit obligation 167,220 (96,349) - 30,659 101,530
Unrealised exchange differences (4,753,859) - 482,401 - (4,271,458)
Total deferred tax (assets)/liabilities (18,519,920) (367,602) 522,488 337,579 (18,027,455)
Deferred tax liabilities/(assets): At 1January (Credit)/ charge (Credit)/ Exchange rate At 31
2018 to P/L charge to OCI differences December
2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Property, plant and equipment 24,725,234 (5,011,254) - (746,3406) 18,967,634
Provisions and other liabilities (6,407,725) (3,041,388) - 124,735 (9,324,378)
Unutilised tax losses (19,038,136) (5,066,123) - 527,722 (23,576,537)
Employment benefit obligation (131,065) 176,953 54,401 66,931 167,220
Prepayments 83,776 (82,649) - (1,127) =
Unrealised exchange differences (5,720,573) 966,714 - - (4,753,859)
Total deferred tax (assets)/liabilities (6,488,489) (12,057,747) 54,401 (28,085) (18,519,920)




14.7.1
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

Company

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities):

Property, plant and equipment
Unutilised tax losses

Provisions and other liabilities
Unrealised exchange differences
Total deferred tax (assets)/liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities/ (assets):

Property, plant and equipment
Unutilised tax losses

Provisions and other liabilities
Unrealised exchange differences

Post employment benefit obligation
Total deferred tax liabilities/(assets)

At 1 January Arising on (Credit)/ (Credit)/ 31 December
2019 business re- chargeto P/L  charge to OCI 2019
organisation
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
(1,437,267) (80,146) (5,407,351) - (6.924,764)
(15,773,773) (562,265) 5,197,120 = (11,138,918)
(5,781,347) - 91,371 30,659 (5,659,317)
(4,958,520) = 687,365 = (4,271,155)
(27,950,907) (642,411) 568,505 30,659 (27,994,154)
At 1 January (Credit)/ (Credit)/ 31 December
2018 charge to P/L  charge to OCI 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
3,756,535 (5,193,802) = (1,437,267)
(11,684,826) (4,088,947) = (15,773,773)
(2,699,231) (3,082,116) = (5,781,347)
(5,511,209) 552,689 - (4,958,520)
(194,653) 176,953 17,700 -
(16,333,384) (11,635,223) 17,700 (27,950,907)

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and unutilised tax losses can be utilised. There are no unrecognised deferred tax asset.

Pioneer status incentive

The group benefited from a tax relief of %3.97 billion (2018: N 6.2billion) arising from the pioneer tax relief granted on one of the Company's
production lines in Mfamosing Plant. The Company was granted a pioneer tax status for 3 years with an effective production date from 1
January 2018 duly certified by the relevant regulatory authority via a letter dated 15 March 2019.
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15 Profit/(loss) before minimum tax

Group Company
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Profit/(loss) before minimum tax is stated after charging/(crediting): 17,892,285 (1,509,768) 24,318,017 (7,408,583)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 16) 29,497,370 18,606,473 27,160,431 16,369,888
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets (Note 17) 672,260 494,990 518,036 2,280
Impairment of property, plant and equipment (Note 16) 389,911 925,207 389,911 219,000
Write off of assets (Note 11) 430,763 956,511 356,348 304,398
Directors emoluments (Note 38.9) 344,315 548,482 344,315 548,482
Audit fees (Note 9) 127,500 127,500 107,500 98,500
Technical service fees (Note 9) 3,847,193 6,302,311 3,575,145 5,816,679
Gain on disposal of PPE (Note 10) 54,689 936,326 54,689 926,622
Foreign exchange loss/(gain) (Note 12b) (1,722,011) 8,446,386 (1,655,551) 8,147,195
Interest income on current account (Note 12a) 1,070,952 8,019,421 789,010 798,754
Impairment of investments in Subsidiaries (Note18.2.7) - - - 3,174,874
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87 Notes to the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

16.6 Capitalised borrowing costs

Capitalised borrowing costs during the year amounted to &638.6 million (2018:Nil), calculated using a capitalisation rate of 9%.

16.7 Depreciation

Depreciation for the year including those charged on Right of Use Asset has been charged as follows:

Cost of sales (Note 7)

Administrative expenses (Note 9)

16.8 Right of Use Assets
GROUP

Cost:

As at 1 January 2019
Additions**

Derecognition of right of use asset

As at 31 December 2019

Accumulated depreciation:

As at 1 January 2019

Depreciation charge for the period

As at 31 December 2019

Carrying amount
As at 31 December 2019

As at 1 January 2019

Company

Cost:

As at 1 January 2019
Additions**

Derecognition of right of use asset

As at 31 December 2019
Accumulated depreciation:

As at 1 January 2019

Depreciation charge for the period

As at 31 December 2019

Carrying amount

As at 31 December 2019

As at 1 January 2019

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
27,932,666 21,649,458 25,801,214 16,265,935
1,564,704 638,821 1,359,217 103,953
29,497,370 22,288,279 27,160,431 16,369,888
Leasehold Buildings Production Motor Vehicles Total
Land Plant
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
13,442 968,260 1,778,259 23,671,768 26,431,729
98,999 444,958 19,834 3,716,502 4,277,267
- - (467,866) - (464,840)
112,441 1,413,218 1,330,227 27,388,270 30,244,156
23,223 740,413 1,274,247 8,683,682 10,721,565
23,223 740,413 1,274,247 8,683,682 10,721,565
89,218 672,805 55,980 18,704,588 19,522,592
13,442 968,260 1,778,259 23,671,768 26,431,729
Leasehold Buildings Production Motor Vehicles Total
Land Plant
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
13,442 951,236 1,778,259 23,671,768 26,414,705
98,999 444,958 19,834 3,716,502 4,280,293
- - (467,866) - (467,866)
112,441 1,396,194 1,330,227 27,388,270 30,227,132
23,223 725,175 1,274,247 8,683,682 10,706,327
23,223 725,175 1,274,247 8,683,682 10,706,327
89,218 671,019 55,980 18,704,588 19,520,806
13,442 951,236 1,778,259 23,671,768 26,414,705

The Group and Company leases several assets including cement depots, residential apartments, and trucks. The average lease term of the

contracts is byears.

**Additions relate to the renewal of existing lease contracts during the year with an option of renewal which management has exercised.
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88 Notes to the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019

17 Intangible assets

Group
Intangible Assets Work in progress Total

N'000 N'000 N'000
Cost
Balance at 1 January 2018 5,102,341 - 5,102,341
Additions 1,106,247 3,114,037 4,220,284
Effect of movements in exchange rates (313,523) (313,523)
Balance at 31 December 2018 5,895,065 3,114,037 9,009,102
Balance at 1 January 2019 5,895,065 3,114,037 9,009,102
Arising from deconsolidation of discontinued operation (5,091,287) - (5,091,287)
Reclassification from PPE 374,662 - 374,662
Software expenditure capitalised 3,114,037 (3,114,037) =
Additions 531,386 - 531,386
Balance at 31 December 2019 4,823,863 - 4,823,863
Accumulated Amortisation
Balance at 1 January 2018 2,468,015 - 2,468,015
Charge for the year 494,990 - 494,990
Effect of movements in exchange rates (148,421) - (148,421)
Balance at 31 December 2018 2,814,584 - 2,814,584
Balance at 1 January 2019 2,814,584 - 2,814,584
Arising from deconsolidation of discontinued operation (2,144,807) - (2,144,807)
Reclassification from PPE 279,758 - 279,758
Charge for the year 672,260 - 672,260
Balance at 31 December 2019 1,621,795 - 1,621,795
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2019 3,202,068 - 3,202,068
At 31 December 2018 3,080,481 3,114,037 6,194,518

Company

Cost Intangible Assets Work in progress Total

N'000 N'000 N'000
Balance at 1 January 2018 92,748 3,114,037 3,206,785
Additions - - -
Balance at 31 December 2018 92,748 3,114,037 3,206,785
Balance at 1 January 2019 92,748 3,114,037 3,206,785
Arising on business re-organisation 23,601 - 23,601
Additions 531,386 - 531,386
Reclassification 374,662 374,662
Construction expenditure capitalised 3,114,037 (3,114,037) =
Intercompany transfer (812,534) (812,534)
Balance at 31 December 2019 3,323,900 - 3,323,900
Accumulated Amortisation
Balance at 1 January 2018 - - -
Charge for the year 2,280 - 2,280
Balance at 31 December 2018 2,280 - 2,280
Balance at 1 January 2019 2,280 - 2,280
Arising on business re-organisation 17,016 - 17,016
Reclassification from PPE 279,758 - 279,758
Charge for the year 518,036 - 518,036
Balance at 31 December 2019 817,090 - 817,090
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2019 2,506,810 - 2,506,810
At 31 December 2018 90,468 3,114,037 3,204,505

Intangible assets represents computer software in the Group's operations. The capitalised expenditure in the Company's books represent the cost
of computer software, (systems, application and products), which was in testing and installation phase at the end of the 2018 which was

capitalised during 2019. Amortisation of intangible assets is included in Note 15.

Lafarge Africa Plc 2019 Annual Report & Accounts



































































































Lafarge ReadyMix is mixed to your specification and delivered to you wherever you are.
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L* A member of USE LAFARGE READYMIX. LAFARGE
LufurgeHntcim CALL O700READYMIX Building better cities ™
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=) Shareholding and Other Information
Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE is hereby given that the 61% Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Lafarge Africa
Plc (“the Company”) will hold at the Lavendar Room, Eko Hotel and Suites, Plot 1415
Adetokunbo Ademola Street, Victoria Island, Lagos on Wednesday, 3rd June, 2020 at
10am to transact the following business:

vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to

Ordinary Business

To consider and if thought fit, to transact the
following Ordinary Business, which will be proposed
as Ordinary Resolutions:

To lay the Audited Financial Statements for the year
ended 31st December 2019 together with the
Report of the Directors, External Auditors and Audit
Committee thereon;

To declare a dividend recommended by the Board of
Directors of the Company in respect of the financial
year ended 31st December2019.

To approve the appointment of the following
Directors:

Mr. Marco Licata (Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Khaled El-Dokani (Executive Director)

Mr. Gbenga Oyebode MFR (Independent Non-
Executive Director)

Mr. Olivier Guitton (Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Lolu Alade-Akinyemi (Executive Director)

To re-elect the following Non-Executive Directors
who being eligible now offer themselves for re-
election:

Mr. Grant Earnshaw

Mrs. Karine Uzan-Mercie

To authorize the Directors to fix the remuneration
of the External Auditors.
To elect members of the Audit Committee.

The Directors of the Company be and are hereby
authorized to approve, sign and/or execute other
documents as may be necessary to give effect to
the above resolutions, including without limitation,
complying with the directives of any regulatory
authority, and all acts carried out, steps taken and
documents executed (or to be executed), by the
Directors of the Company in connection with the
above resolution be and are hereby approved
and/or ratified as the case may be to give effect to

these resolutions and, where applicable, to file

and/or register same with the Corporate Affairs
Commission.

Notes:

A member of the Company entitled to attend and

Lafarge Africa Plc 2019 Annual Report & Accounts

attend and vote instead of him/her. In view of the
Covid-19 pandemic, restrictions on public gatherings
and in accordance with the Corporate Affairs
Commission's Guidelines on Holding of Annual
General Meetings (AGM) of Public Companies
attendance shall be by PROXY ONLY.

The designated proxies listed in the proxy form
attached to the Annual Report are: Mr. Mobolaji
Balogun (Chairman), Mr. Khaled ElI-Dokani
(GMD/CEQ) and Mrs. Adewunmi Alode (Company
Secretary).

For the appointment to be valid, executed forms of
the proxy should be deposited with the Registrars,
CardinalStone Registrars Limited, 358, Herbert
Macaulay way, by St. Dominic Catholic Church,
Sabo, Yaba, Lagos or by email to
registrars@cardinalstone.com, not less than 48hours

before the time fixed for the meeting.

If the dividend recommended by the Directors is
approved, dividend will be paid on Wednesday, 3rd
June 2020 to shareholders whose names appear in
the Register of Members at the close of business

on Thursday, 30th April 2020.

E-Dividend

Notice is hereby given to all shareholders to open
bank accounts, stockbroking accounts and CSCS
accounts for the purpose of dividend. Detachable
application forms for the e-dividend is attached to
the Annual Report to enable all shareholders
furnish particulars of their bank accounts to the
Registrar as soon as possible. The e-dividend form
is also available on the website of our Registrar
www.cardinalstoneregistrars.com
















@ Photo Reel

Lafarge Africa Plc 2019 Annual Report & Accounts
























	NON FINANCIAL
	FINANCIAL  ALL NEW

